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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF BHAGYANAGAR COPPER PRIVATE LIMITED
(EARLIER 'AANVIK MERCANTILE PRIVATE LIMITED')

Report on the Audit of Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of BHAGYANAGAR COPPER PRIVATE LIMITED {"the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss
lincluding the statement of Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement and the statement of
change in Equity for the year then ended and notes to the Financial Statements, including the summary of the
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (“The Einancial Statements”),

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 as amended [‘the Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the company as at March 31 ;2023 , of total comprehensive income
(comprising of profit and other comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year
ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the standards on Auditing (SAs)
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Qur responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(ICAl) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our Audit of the Financial Statements under
the provision of the Act and the Rules made there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics, We believe that the audit evidence
obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Emphasis of matter
We draw attention to the following matters:

{a) Note No. 53 of the accompanying Financial Statements wherein, balances under the head Claims
Recoverable, Loans & Advances, Deposits from and with various parties and certain balances of trade

receivables, trade payables and other current liabilities have not been confirmed as at March 31, 2022,
although letters have been sent by the Company se eking confirmation of balances, Consequential
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impact upon receipt of such confirmation / reconciliation / adjustments of such balances, if any is not

ascertainable at this stage.

{b) Note No.42 of the accompanying notes to accounts of the financial statements which describes income
tax assessment in the company for the AY. 2021-2022 which was completed and the department has
raised a demand of Rs. 66.42 Crores against which the company has filed an appeal to the
Commissioner of Incorme Tax Appeal. The company has been advised by the legal experts that it has fair
chance of ultimately succeeding in the matter and accordingly no provision has been made in the books

of accounts.

Key Audit Matters

1. Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period, These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion therean, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the

matter is provided in that context:

Descriptions of Key Audit Matter

How we addressed the matter in our audit -

. Accuracy and completeness of revenue recognized.

Refer to note 21 to the Financial Statements the
Company reported revenue of Rs.51224,89 Lakhs
from sale of copper products, The application of
revenue recognition accounting standards s
complex and involves a number of key judgments
and estimates, Due to the estimates and judgment
and complexity involved in the application of the
revenue recognition accounting standards, we have
considered this matter as a key audit matter. The
Company's accounting policies relating to revenue
recognition are presented in note 12 to the
financial statements,

We addressed the Key Audit Matter as follows -

As part of our audit, we understood the Company's
policies and processes, control mechanisms  and
methods in relation to the revenue recognition and
evaluated the design and operating effectiveness of the
financial controls from the above through our test of
control procedures.

Assessed the Company's revenue  recognition
accounting policies in line with Ind AS 115 {"Revenue
from Contracts with Customers”) and tested thereot,

Review the company’s judgment in  determining
whether the performance obligation is satisfied at a
point in time or over a period of time.

Tested a sample of sales transactions for compliance
with the Company's accounting

Frinciples to assess the completeness and accuracy of
revenue recorded,

We evaluated the management’s process to recognize
revenue over a period of time, total cost estimates,
status of the projects and re-calculated the arithmetic
accuracy of the same.

Evaluated management assessment of the impact on
revenue recognition.
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Descriptions of Key Audit Matter

How we addressed the matter in our audit

We examined contracts with exceptions including
contracts with low or negative margins, loss making
contracts, etc to determine the level of provisianing.

Our tests of detail focused on transactions occurring
within proximity of the year end and obtaining
evidence to support the appropriate timing of revenue
recognition, based on terms and conditions set out in
sales contracts and delivery documents. We considered
the appropriateness and accuracy of any cut-off |
adjustments.

Performed analytical procedures over revenue and
receivables. Compared revenue with historical trends
and where appropriate, conducted further enquiries
and testing.

10. Traced disclosure information to accounting records
and other supporting documentation.

11.Assessed disclosures in financial statements in respect
of revenue, as specified in Ind AS 115.

12. Our Observation:
Based on the audit procedures performed we did not

identify any material exceptions in the revenue
recagnition,

2. ‘Waluation of Inventories,

Refer to note 7 to the Financial Statements, the
Company is having the Inventories of Rs.5598.01
Lakhs as on 31st March 2023. As described in the
accounting policies in note 1 to the financial
statements, inventories are carried at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. As a result, the
management applies judgment in determining the
appropriate provisions for obsolete stock based
upon a detailed analysis of old inventory, net
realisable value below cost based upon future plans
for sale of inventory.

We addressed the Key Audit Matter as follows -

We obtained assurance over the appropriateness of the
management's assumptions applied in calculating the
value of the inventories and related provisions and
management assertion regarding existence and
ownership by:-

1. Completed a walkthrough of the inventory valuation
process and assessed the design and implementation of
the key cantrols addressing the risk,

2. Verifying the effectiveness of key inventory controls
operating over inventories;

3. Reviewing the physical verification decuments related




i ﬁéﬁcrih’iiuns of Key Audit Matter ~ How wg_addressed the matter in our audit
to inventories conducted during the year,

|4, Veritying for a sample of individual products that costs
have been correctly recorded,

3. Comparing the net realisable value to the cost price of
inventories to check for completeness of the associated
provisian,

4, Reviewing the historical accuracy of inventory
provisioning and the level of inventory write-offs during
the year,

5. Re-computing provisions recorded to verify that they
are in line with the Company policy.

6. Cur Observation:

Based on the audit procedures performed we did not
identify any material exceptions in the Inventory valuation
and existence,

information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprise
the information included in the annual report, but does not include the financial statements and our
auditor's report thereon. The annual report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this
auditor's report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the annual report, If we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take appropriate action as
applicable under the relevant laws and regulations,

Management Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act,

2013 {"the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of
the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in

s



equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
{Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rule, 2015, as amended. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of
the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that
are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adeguate internal financial
cantrols, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the company or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also respansible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Financial Statements.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not @ guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or errar and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or errar, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstaterment resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud any involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal contral.

® (Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, Under section 143(3)i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the gaing concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our




1)

2)

opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
CONCern,

® Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate,
makes it probable that the econamic decisions of a reasanably knowledgeable user of the financial statements
may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and gualitative factors in (|} planning the scope of our
audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (i) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with these charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2023 {the “Order”) issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure B” statement on the
matters Specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order,

As required by section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that;

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
it appears from cur examination of those books.

c. The Balance Sheet, the statement of Profit and Loss including the statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account,




d. Inour opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the ind AS specified under section
133 of the Act.

e. On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2022 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act,

f.  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in
“Annexure A", Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197{16) of the Act, as amended:
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, no
remuneration has been paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with
the provisions of section 197 of the Act,

h. With respect to other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

{i)} The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its Notes
to the Financial Statements.

(i} The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses as on March 31,2023

{iii) There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund,

(iv) a) The Management of the company have represented to us, to the best of their knowledge and belief,
no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested {either from the borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity
including foreign entity {“Intermediaries”}, with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate beneficiaries;

b] The Management of the Company have represented to us, to the best of the knowledge and belief,
no funds have been received by the company from any person or entity, including foreign entity
("Funding parties”) with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Company shall directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner what's the whatsoever by or on behalf of the funding party (“Ultimate beneficiaries') or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and




¢] Based on audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances performed by us on the Company, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us
to believe that the representations are under sub clause (i} and (ii) of Rule 11{e), as provided under
{a) and [b) above, contain any material misstatement,

3) The company has not declared any dividend in the previous financial year which has been paid in current
year, Further, no dividend has been declared/ proposed for the current yvear accordingly the section 123 of
the Act is not applicable to the company.

4] Proviso to Rule 3{1) of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books of account using
accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail {edit log) facility is applicable to the
company with effect from April 1, 2023, and accordingly, reporting under Rule 11{g) of Companies {Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2023

For Luharuka & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg No: - 018825

s

Maveen Lohia

{Partner)

Membership No.214548

UDIN: 23214548BGWOPK3812

Place: Secunderabad
Date: 26% May, 2023



ANNEXURE "A “TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
report to the Members of BHAGYANAGAR COPPER PRIVATE LIMITED (EARLIER ‘AANVIK MERCANTILE PRIVATE
LIMITED' ) of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i} of Sub-section 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

1. We have audited the internal financial contrals with reference to Financial Statements of BHAGYANAGAR

COPPER PRIVATE LIMITED {EARLIER 'AANVIK MERCANTILE PRIVATE LIMITED' ) (“the Company”) as of 31 March,
2023 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that
date,

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI"), These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditor's Responsibility

3.

5,

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Mote on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing
issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial
Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinian on the Company's internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements.

e
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

6. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable

assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements,

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

¥

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls
over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over
financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

&

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company
has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such
internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March 2023, based on
the criteria for internal financial control over financial reporting established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India,

For Luharuka & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg No: - 018825

s

Maveen Lohia
(Partner)
Membership No.214548
UDIN: 23214548BGWOPK3E12

Place: Secunderabad

Date: 26" May, 2023



'ANNEXURE ‘B’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report
to the Members BHAGYANAGAR COPPER PRIVATE LIMITED (EARLIER "AANVIK MERCANTILE PRIVATE LIMITED' } of

even date)

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the company and the books
of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that:

] In respect of the company’s Property, Plant and Equipment and intangible assets-

a)

b)

€}

A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment,

B) The Company has not capitalized any intangible assets in the books of the Company and
accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3{i) (a) (B} of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

The Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified during the year by the
management in accordance with a regular programme of verification which, in our opinion,
provides for physical verification of all the Property, Plant and Equipment at reasonable
intervals, According to the information and explanation given to us, no material discrepancies
have been noticed on such verification.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the company, the title deeds of immovable properties (other than properties
where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the
lessee) included in Property, Plant and Equipment are held in the name of company,

The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Flant and Equipment (including right of use
assets) or intangible assets during the year ended March 31, 2023, Accordingly the reporting
under clause 3(i}{d} of the order is not applicable to the company.

Based on the information and explanations furnished to us, no proceedings have been initiated
on or are pending against the Company for holding benami property under the Prohibition
Benami Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) (formerly the benami transactions
(prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988} and rules made thereunder and therefore the question of
our commenting on whether the company appropriately disclosed the details in its financial
statements does not arise,

{ii}  Inthe respect of matters specified in clause (i) of paragraphs 3 the order :

{a) Asexplained to us, the inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year, In
our opinion, the frequency of verification by the management is reasonable and the coverage and
procedure for such verification is appropriate and discrepancies of 10% or more in aggregate for
each class of inventory were not noticed in respect of such verification.




{iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

{ix)

(b) As disclosed in notes to the financial statements, the Company has been sanctioned working capital
limits in excess of Rs.5 crores, in aggregate, from banks on the basis of security of current assets. The
Company has filed quarterly statement returns with such banks which are in agreement with the books
of accounts of the Company,

During the year, the Company has not made any investments, not provided any loans, advances in the
nature of loans, stood guarantee or provided security to any companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3{iii) of the Order to such extent
is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no investments,
loan, guarantees and securities given in respect of which the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the
Act, are applicable,

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has neither
accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts which are deemed to be deposits
within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act and the rules made thereunder, to the
extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3 (v) of the Order are not applicable
to the Company.

We have broadly reviewed the cost records maintained by the company prescribed by the Central
Government of India under section 148(1) of the Act and are of the opinion that prima facie the
prescribed accounts and records have been maintained, We have, however , not made a detailed
examination of the cost records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

According to the information and explanations given te us and based on the records of the company
examined by us, in respect of statutory dues:

{a] the company is generally regular in depositing the undisputed statutory dues, including
Provident Fund, , Employees” State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales-tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax,
Custom Duty, Excise Duty and other statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities
in India;

{b) there are no dues of Income Tax, goods and service tax, provident fund, employees’ state
insurance, customs duty , cess and any other statutory dues which have not been deposited on
account of any disputes,

According to the records of the company examined by us and as per the information and explanation
given to us, there were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act,
1961 (43 of 1961).

(a) According to the records of the company examined by us and as per the Information and
explanations given to us, the company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or
in the payment of interest thereon to any financial institution or banks or lender.




{x)

{b} According to the records of the company examined by us and as per the information and
explanations given to us, The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or
financial institution or government or any government authority.

(¢) According to the records of the company examined by us and as per the information and
explanations given to us, the term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were
obtained.

(d) According to the records of the company examined by us and as per the information and
explanations given to us, on an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, no
funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e} According to the records of the company examined by us and as per the information and
explanations given to us, on an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the
Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the
obligations of its subsidiaries or associate companies.

(f} According to the records of the company examined by us and as per the information and
explanations given to us, the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of
securities held in its subsidiaries or associate companies. Hence, the requirement to report on
clause (ix) {f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.,

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and based an our examination of the
records of the company, the Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further
public offer (including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause 3{x) (a) of
the Order is not applicable,

(b} According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the company, during the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or
private placement of shares or convertible debentures {fully or partly or optionally) during the year
under audit and hence reporting under clause 3(x) (b} of the Order is not applicable.

(xi) {a) According to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by the Company or on

{xii}

[xiii)

the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

{b) According to the information and explanations given to us, during the year and upto the date of this
audit report, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed
by the secretarial auditor or by us in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

{c) According to the information and explanations given to us, during the year there are no whistle
blower complaints received by the company during the year.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the Order is not
applicable,

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records
of the company, transactions with the related parties, are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the




{xiv]

{xv)

{avi)

(xvii)
{aoviii)

(xix)

Companies Act, 2013, where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the
Financial 5tatements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

{a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size and
the nature of its business.

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the Company
during the year and till date, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures.

In our opinion during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its
directors or persons connected with its directors, Hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act,
2013 are not applicable to the Company.

(a} In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-14 of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3{xvi) (a), (b) and {c) of the Order is not applicable.

(b} According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the company, the Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing
Finance activities without obtained a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of
India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

{c) According to the information and explanations given to us and based an our examination of the
records of the company, the Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the
regulations made by Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi)
{c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company,

(d) In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the Core
Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly reporting under clause
3(xvi) [d) of the Order is not applicable,

In our opinion, there is no cash |oss in the financial year and in the immediately preceding financial year.
There has been no resignation of the statutary auditors of the Company during the year.

On the basls of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe
that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date, We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to
the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the
date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and
when they fall due,




(xx)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records
of the company, there are no unspent amounts that are required to be transferred to a fund specified in
Schedule VIl to the companies Act (the Act), in compliance with second proviso to sub section 5 of
section 135 of the Act. Accordingly reporting under clause 3(xx) (a) and (b} of the Drder is not
applicable.

For Luharuka & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg No: - 018825

Y

Place: Secunderabad i Naveen Lohia
Date : 26" May 2023 {Partner)
L e Membership No.214548
UDIN: 23214548BGWOPK3812




BHAGYANAGAR COPPER PRIVATE LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH,2023
CIN: U27100TG2008PTC125034 . :
(All amounts are in Indfan Rupees {lakhs) except share data and where otherwise stated)

[NON- CURRENT ASSETS

(i) Property, Plant and equipment 5 4,356.47 3,854.66
{ii) Financial Assets
a) Other Financial Assets 6 79.81 47.49
CURRENT ASSETS
(i} Inventories _ 7 5,598.01 2,157.60
(ii) Financial Assets .
a)Trade Recelvables : 8 1,755.83 2,445,88
b)Cash and Cash Equivalents 9 4.60 909.50
¢)Other Balances with bank 10 29.81 146.88
(i) Current Tax Assets (net) 11 79.62 157.14
(iv) Other Current Asset 12 : 4,167.03 3,011.70

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

EQUITY
(I} Equity Share Capital ) 13 2,000.00 2,000.00
(Il) Other Equity , 14 1,288.50 885.42
LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
(i} Financial Liabilities

a)Borrowings 15 4,156.02 3,650.61
CURRENT LIABILITIES
(i) Financial Liabilities

a)Borrowings 16 7,/454.40 5,230.83

b)Trade Payables

- Total Outstanding dues of Micro and Small Enterprises 1.07

- Total Outstanding dues of Creditors Other than Micro and Small

Enterprises 17 909.34 490.02
(i) Deferred Tax Liability (net) . 18 82.58 -
(i) Other Current Liabilities : 19 70.39 418.66
(iv) Provisions 20 . 108.88 |. 55.29

Significant ‘accounting policies and key accounting estimates and judgements Lto4
The accompanying notes form an integral part of financial statements 28 to 54

_ For and on behalf of the BOD of Bhagyanagar
As per our report of even date attached Copper Private Limited
For LUHARUKA & ASSOCIATES

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Firm Reg N0.01882S

Naveen Lohia arender Surana Devedra Surana

Partner Director Director

M. No. 214548 DIN : 00075086 DIN : 00077296
Surendra Bhutoria Lalit Kumar Thanvi

Chief Financial Officer ~ Company Secretary
M. Nc.AB2058

Place: Secunderabad, .
Date : 24.05.2023




BHAGYANAGAR COPPER PRIVATE LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH,2023

(All amounts are in Indian Rupees {lakhs) except share data and wher

Fo

otherwise stated)

rry

. {REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS 21 l 51,224.89 54,507.44
. |OTHER INCOME . 22 16,31 12.71
. }TOTAL INCOME (i+11) 51,241.20 54,520.16
IV, |EXPENSES
Cost of Materials Consumed 23 47,143,27 50,248.81
Changes in Finished Goods, Work in Process and Material In Transit 24 (2,574.40} -
Employee Benefit Expenses 25 465.20 329.90
Finance costs 26 745.60 698.07
Depreciation Expense 5 231.20 204.45
Other expenses 27 3,589.26 2,367.67
TOTAL EXPENSES {IV) 50,600.13 53,848.94
V. I{PROFIT BEFORE EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS AND TAX (HI-IV) 641.07 671.22
V1. |Exceptional Items =
VI, |PROFIT BEFORE TAX (V+VI) 641,07 671.22
VIl [TAX EXPENSE:
1, Current tax 107.01 112.04
2.Deferred Tax 130,98 {112.04)
IX. |PROFIT FOR THE YEAR . 403.08 671.22
X. |OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME )
A |ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss - -
B [items that will be reclassified to profit or loss 5 ' -
TOTAL OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR -
Xl |Total Comprehensive Income / (Loss) for the year (IX+X] 403.08 571.22
- XIt |Earning Per Equity Share
(a) Basic 2.02 3.36
{b) Diluted : 2,02 3.36

Significant accounting policies and key accounting estimates and judgements 1to4

The accompanying notes form an integral part of financial statements 28 to 54
For and on behalf of the BOD of Bhagyanagar Copper
As per our report of even date attached Private Limited
For LUHARUKA & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Firm Reg No,018825

A
Naveen Lohia f/ A o Narender Surana Devendra Surana
Partner £ ff o avEaED CE T Director Director
M. No. 214548 B p‘(ﬁﬁ, )N"{gié'fsﬁg‘;ﬁf o DIN : 00075086 DIN : 00077296

g\}gi\ %ﬁ%‘:i\!-{!li’nﬁ?ﬂ/ } jffg {ﬂ/‘.l‘ ((:

oY 2714 . y .
Place: Secunderabad, e o BHULHTEZ . Lalit Kumar Thanvi
Date : 26.05,2023 i Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

M. No.AG2058



BHAGYANAGAR COPPER PRIVATE LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2023
{All amounts are in Indian Rupees (lakhs) except share data and where otherwise stated)

PARTICULARS For the Year For the Yeat
2022-23 2021-22
A |Cash fiow from Operating Activiies
Net profit before tax as per annexed Profit and loss account 541.07 671.22
Add: Adjustments for:
Depreciation & Amortisation 231.20 204,48
Interest paid 745,60 698.07
Sundry Balances Written Off 29.30 -
Interest Recelved ‘ {3.08) -
Sundry Balances Written Back {10.81) 5,70
Operating profit before working Capital Changes 1,633.28 1,579.48
Other Non current Financial Assets (32.32) (5.95)
Cther current assets (1,155.33) (421.34)
inventory (3,440.41) (677.18)
Trade recelvables 700.86 696,73
Trade Payahles 419.90 {353.51}
Other Current Liabilities (348.27) 358.36

Provisicns 53.59 . 25.71

Cash generated from Operations {2,168.71) 1,202.30
Income Tax Paid (Including Prior Period) {77.89) (136.54)
Net cash {used in)/from Operating Activities{A) {2,246.51) 1,065.66
B |Cash flow from Investing Activities
Purchase of Fixed Assets & Other Capltal Expendlture ) (761.82) {146.92)
Interest Received ! 3.09 -
Net Cash {used In)/from Investing Activities (B} {758.73) (146.92)
C |Cash flow from Financing Activities
Interest Pald {(745.60) (698.07)
Increase {Decrease) in Unsacured Loans 5%4.42 (2,165.55)
Borrowings 2,034.56 2,843.97
{Increase)/Decrease in restricted deposits 117.06 6.08
Net Cash {used In)/from Financing Activities (C} 2,100.44 {13.57)
Net Increase f Decrease in'cash and Cash Equivalents {A+B+C) (904,90} 905.17
Cash and Cash Equivalents Opening Balance 909.50 4.32
Cash and Cash Equivalents Closing Balance 4.60 909,50
Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents {904.90) 905.17

The Cash flow Statement has been prepared as set out.in Indian Accounting Standard (IND AS) 7 STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS, as amended by
Companies (indian Accounting Standards) (Amendement) Rules 2016.This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date
attached .

2. Components of cash and cash equivalents 2022-23 2021-22

Cash In hand 1.90 1.25

Balances with bank 2.69 908,24
4.60 909.50

Significant accounting policies and key accounting estimates and judgement 1to &
The accompanying notes form an integral part of financial statements 28to0 54
As per our report of even date attached
For LUHARUKA & ASSCCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Firm Reg No,018825

Navee;'l Lohia

g

Narender Surana

Devendra Surana

Partner { Director Director
M. No. 214548 : DIf 1 00075086 DIN : 00077296
I B
Surendra Bhutoria === Lalit Kumar Thanvi
Place: Secunderabad, Chief Financial Officer Cornpany Secretary
Date : 2£.05.2023 M. No.A62058



Bhagyanagar Coppet Private Limited - March 2023

Statement of Changes in Equity for the Year ended 31st March 2023
{All amounts are in Indian Rupees (lakhs) except share data and where otherwise stated)
A, Equity Share capital

Particulars No of shares INR
Current year Reporting period

Balance as at 1 April 2022 200 2,000
Changes in equity share capital during 2022-23 - -
Balance as at 31 March 2023 200 2,000
Previous year Reporting period

Balance as at 1 April 2021 200 2,000
Changes in equity share capital during 2021-22 - | -
Balance as at 31 March 2022 200 2,000

B. Other equity

Other Equity
PARTICULARS Retained . Total
. Capital Reserve
Earnings
Current year Reporting period )
Balance as at 1 April 2022 398.78 486.64 BR5.42
Profit for the year 403.08 - 403.08
Other Comprehensive Income (net of tax} - - -
Total Comprehensive Incoma for tha year 2022-23 (B) 403.08 486.64 £03.08
Transfer in/Qut General Reserve - - -
Dividends - - -
Tax on dividends - - -
Balance at 31 March 2023 C= (A+B) 301.86 973,29 1,288.50
Previous yeir Reporting period
Balance at 1 Aprii 2021 (L) (272.44} 486.54 214,20
Profit for the year 671.22 - 671.22
Other Comprehensive income {net of tax) - - -
Reserve created during the year - - -
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 2021-22  (E) 871,22 - 671.22
Transfer InfOut General Resarve - - -
Dividends - - -
Tax an dividends - - -
Balance at 31 March 2022 F =(D+E) 308,78 486,64 885.42

The Description,Nature and Purpose of the each reserve with In equity are as follows

General Reserve: This reserve is created by an appropriation from one component of equity
{generally retained earnings) to another, not being an item of OCl. The same can be utilised in
accordance with the provisions of Companies Act 2013.

Retained Earnings: This reserve represents the cummulative profits of the company. The reserve can
he Gtilised iri dccordance with the provisions of the Companies Act-2013 - -

Significant accounting policies and key accounting estimates and judgements itod

The accompanying notes form an integral part of financiai statements 281054

As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the BOD of
For LUHARUKA & ASSOCIATES Bhagyanagar Copper Private Limited
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Firm Reg No.018825

- s

Naveen Lohia Narender Surana Devendra Surana
Partner . ’ Director Director
M. No. 214548 DIN : 00075086 DIN : 00077296

Surendra Bhutoria Lalit Kumar Thanvi

Chief Financia! Officer Company Secretary
M. No.AG2G58

Place: Secunderabad,
Date : 26.05.2023



BHAGYANAGAR COPPER PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U27100TG2008PTC125034

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the year ended 31st March 2023
NOTE 1; SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, JUDGEMENTS & KEY ESTIMATES

i CORPORATE OVERVIEW:

Bhagyanagar Copper Pvt Ltd (“the company”) is a Company registered under the companies act, 1956.
It was incorporated on 30-04-2008 having its registered office at Sy No 98 to
105,107,111,230,231,232,234 Shabashpally Village, Shivampet, Mandal, Medak- 502334.
Bhagyanagar india Limited on 6th February 2018 acquired 100% shareholding of the company. It
proposes to engage in the manufacture of copper products. The company’s CIN is
U27100TG2008PTC125034. It is the subsidiary company of Bhagyanagar India Limited, which is listed
on the stock exchange.

The financial statemenis of the Company have been approved by the Board of Directors in their
meeting held on May 27, 2023,

. BASIS OF PREPARATION:
a) Statement of Compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards
(“Ind AS”) as prescribed by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”), read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (amended),
guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI), and presentation requirements
of Division !l of Schedule 1l to the Companies Act, 2013, {ind AS compliant Schedule 1li}, as applicable
to the Financial Statement, other relevant provisions of the Act and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India.

Accounting policies have been consnstently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard
is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting
policy hithetto in use.

b) Basis-of-Measurement -~ —
The financial statements of the Company have heen prepared on hlstorlcal cost ba5|s except for the
following assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value:
i. - Certain financial assets & liabilities (including derivative instruments)
ii. Defined Benefit Plans as per actuartal valuation
ili.  Share based Payments

c¢) Functional and Presentation Currency

The financial statements have been presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company’s
functional currency. All financial information presented in INR has been rounded off to the nearest
lakhs as per the requirements of Schedule 1l1, unless otherwise stated.

[1l. Use of Assumptions, Judgments and Estimates

The key assumption, judgment and estimation at the reporting date, that have significant risk causing
the material adjustment to the carrying amounts?'q ets and liabilities within the next financial year,
are descrlbe below. The company based IES @s?tjmptlo 4udgment and estimation on parameters

{'c
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BHAGYANAGAR COPPER PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN: U27100TG2008PTC125034
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2023 {CONTD.}
NOTE 1: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, JUDGEMENTS & KEY ESTIMATES (CONTD.)

available on the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumption about
future development, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are
beyond the control of the company. Such changes are reflected in the assumption when they occur.

i) Revenue

The application of revenue recognition accounting standards is complex and involves a number of key
judgements and estimates. Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the
consideration, adjusted for volume discounts, price concessions and incentives, if any, as specified in
the contract with the customer. The Company exercises judgment in determining whether the
performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time or over a period of time.

ii} Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the
Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s or CGU's fair value less costs of disposal and its value in' use. It is determined for an individual
asset, ‘unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
rother -assets or groups of assets, Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its
irecoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

‘An impairment loss is recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss in the year in which
an asset is identified as impaired. The impairment loss recognized in earlier accounting period is
reversed if there has been an improvement in recoverable amount.

iti) -~ Defined benefit plans
The cost of the defined benefit plan and other post- employment benefits and the present value of
such obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making
various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the
. determination of the discount-rate,-future salary increases, mortality rates and attrition rate, Due to
the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is
highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. Al assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

iv)Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot

he measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation
techniques including the Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) model. The inputs to these models are taken

from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is

required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk,

credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair

value of financial instruments.

v) Impairment of financial assets

2I1Pagre




BHAGYANAGAR COPPER PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN: U27100TG2008PTC125034
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2023 (CONTD.)
NOTE 1: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, JUDGEMENTS & KEY ESTIMATES (CONTD.)

The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and
expected loss rates. The Company uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the
inputs to the impairment calculation, based on Company’s past history, existing market conditions as
well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

vi)Share-based payments

The Company measures the cost of equity-settled transactions with employees using Black-Scholes
model to determine the fair value of the liability incurred on the grant date. Estimating fair value for
share-based payment transactions requires determination of the most appropriate valuation model,
which is dependent on the terms and conditions of the grant. This estimate also requires
determination of the most appropriate inputs to the valuation model including the expected life of
the share option, volatility and dividend yield and making assumptions about them.

Employees (including senior executives) of the Company receive remuneration in the form of share-
based payments, wherehy employees render services as consideration for equity instruments (equity-
settled transactions).

Equity-settled transactions

« The cost of equity-settied transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is
- made using an appropriate valuation model.

~ That cost is recognized, together with a corresponding increase in share-based payment reserves in
+ equity, over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled in employee
benefits expense.

The cumulative expense recognized for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until the
vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Company’s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The expense or credit in the
statement of profit and loss for a period represents the movement in cumulative expense recognized
as at the beginning and end of that period and is recognized in employee benefits expense. No
expensé is recognized for awards that do not ultimately vest because service conditions have not been
‘met. When the terms of an-equity-settled-award are modified, the minimum expense recognized.is
the grant date fair value of the unmodified award, provided the original vesting terms of the award
are ‘met. An additional expense, measured as at the date of modification, is recognized for any
modification that increases the total fair value of the share-based payment transaction, oris otherwise
beneficial to the employee. Where an award is cancelled by the entity or by the counterparty, any
remaining element of the fair value of the award is expensed immediately through profit or loss.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation

of diluted earnings per share.

vii) Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets
The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognized is based on an assessment of the probability
of the Company’s future taxable income against which the deferred tax assets can be utilized. In

addition, significant judgment is required in assessing the impact of any legal or economic limits.

viii)Classification of Leases
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BHAGYANAGAR COPPER PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN: U27100TG2008PTC125034
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2023 {CONTD.)
NOTE 1: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, JUDGEMENTS & KEY ESTIMATES (CONTD.)

The Company enters into leasing arrangements for various assets. The classification of the leasing
arrangement as a finance lease or operating lease is based on an assessment of several factors,
including, but not limited to, transfer of ownership of leased asset at end of lease term, lessee’s option
to purchase and estimated certainty of exercise of such option, proportion of lease term to the asset’s
economic life, proportion of present value of minimum lease payments to fair value of leased asset
and extent of specialized nature of the leased asset.

ix)Restoration, rehabilitation and decommissioning

Estimation of restoration/ rehabilitation/ decommissioning costs requires interpretation of scientific
and legal data, in addition to assumptions about probability of future costs. ‘

x) Provisions and Contingencies

The assessments undertaken in recognizing provisions and contingencies have been made in
accordance with Indian Accounting Standards {Ind AS) 37, ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets’. The evaluation of the likelihood of the contingent events is applied best
judgement by management regarding the probability of exposure to potential loss.

d) Classification of Assets and Liabilities into Current/Non-Current

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal
operating cycle and other criteria set out in Schedule Ill to the Companies Act, 2013, as given below.

The Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current and non-
current classification of assets and liabilities.

For the purpose of Balance Sheet, an asset is classified as current if:

i} Expected to be realized or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;

ii) Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

iii) Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting peried; or

iv) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being-exchanged or used to settle a liahility for at

least twelve months after the reporting period.
All the other assets are classified as non-current.

Similarly, a liability is current if:

i) Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;

ii) It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

iii) It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

iv) There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months

after the reporting period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities a‘?/@ :

il

ifPage ‘\\GHMW"




BHAGYANAGAR COPPER PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN: U27100TG2008PTC125034
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2023 (CONTD.)
NOTE 1: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, JUDGEMENTS & KEY ESTIMATES (CONTD.}

Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities are classified as current assets and liabilities respectively.

V. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:
A summary of the significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of the financial statements
are as given below. These accounting policies have been applied consistently to all the periods
presented in the financial statements, unless otherwise stated.

1} Inventories
a) Raw materials:

Valued at lower of cost and net realisable value (NRV). However, these items are considered to be
realisable at cost, if the finished products, in which they will be used, are expected to be sold at or
above cost. Cost is determined on weighted average basis.

b} Work-in-progress (WIP) and finished goods

Valued at lower of cost and NRV. Cost of Finished goods and WIP includes cost of raw materials, cost
. oficonversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and
- condition. Cost of inventories is computed on weighted average basis. ‘

¢) Waste [ Scrap

Waste / Scrap inventory is valued at NRV. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary
to make the sale.

However, materials and other supplies held for use in the production of inventories (finished goods, -
work-in-progress) are not written down below the cost if the finished products in which they will be
“used are expected fo sell at or below the cost. ' '

Materials in transit are valued at cost fo date.

d) Stores, spares and consumables
Stores spares, packing material and all consumables items held for use in the production of

inventories are charged to profit & loss account as and when purchased.

Provision is recognized for damaged, defective or obsolete stocks where necessary.
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BHAGYANAGAR COPPER PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN: U27100TG2008PTC125034
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2023 (CONTD.}
NOTE 1: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, JUDGEMENTS & KEY ESTIMATES (CONTD.) '

2) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand, Cheques on hand
and short term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an
insignificant risk of change in value, ‘ ‘

3) Cash Flows ' , 1
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, where by net profit before tax is adjusted for the
effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash
receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash
flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities are segregated.

4) Income Tax
Income Tax comprises current and deferred tax.
a} Current Tax

Current Tax issmeasured on the basis of estimated taxable income for the current accounting period
in‘accordance with the applicable tax rates and the provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961. Current
income tax is recognized in the statement of profit and loss except to the extent that it reiates to an
item recognized directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

b) Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided, on all temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary
differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the reporting date. Tax relating-to items recognised directly in.equity or.OC! is recognised in equity or
OCl and not in the statement of profit and loss. -

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority, but they intend
to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realized
simultaneously.

A deferred tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the temporary difference can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at
each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable.

MAT Credit is recognized as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that
the Company will pay normal Income Tax during the specified period. In the year in which the
Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) credit becomes eligible to be recognized as an asset in accordance
with the recommendations contained in guidance note issued by the ICA, the said assetis created by
way of credit to statement of profit and los as MAT credit entitlement. The Company |
reviews the same at each Balance Shee;ff: : ites down the carrying amount of MAT
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entitlement to the extent there is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that Company will pay
normal income Tax during the specified period.

5) Property, Plant and Equipment

a) Recognition and Measurement

i} Property, plant and equipment held for use in the production or/and supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purposes, are stated in the balance sheet at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses (if any).

ii) Cost ofan item of property, plant and equipment acquired comprises its purchase price, including
import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting any trade discounts and
rebates, any directly attributable costs of bringing the assets to its working condition and location
for its intended use and present value of any estimated cost of dismantling and removing the item
and restoring the site on which it is located.

iii) In case of self-constructed assets, cost includes the costs of all materials used in construction,
direct labour, allocation of directly attributable cverheads, directly attributable borrowing costs
incurred in bringing the item to working condition for its intended use, and estimated cost of
dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located. The costs of testing
whether the asset is functioning properly, after deducting the net proceeds from selling items
produced while bringing the asset to that location and condition are also added to the cost of self-
constructed assets. ‘

“jv} For transition to IND AS, the company has revalued land at fair value as deemed cost and
considered other assets at Ind AS Cost.

v} Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of property, plant and equipment are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognized
in the statement of profit and loss.

vi) Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the cost incurred will flow to the Company and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate
asset is derecognized when replaced. Major Inspection/ Repairs/ Overhauling expenses are
recognlzed in the carrying amount of the item of property, plant and equipment a replacement if
the recognition criteria are satisfied. Any Unamortized part of the previously recognized expenses
of similar nature is derecognized.

vii) The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment
are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

vili)The Company identifies and determines cost of asset significant to the total cost of the asset
having useful life that is materially different from that of the remaining life.

ix) Research anddevelopmentcoststhatarg; i
to generate probable future }g’tﬁ()‘nomc b“’}\ fits are capitalized and classified under

i
gg b {;‘4
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NOTE 1: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, JUDGEMENTS & KEY ESTIMATES (CONTD.}

tangible/intangible assets and depreciated on the same basis as other fixed assets. Revenue
expenditure on research and development is charged to the statement of profit and loss in the
year in which it is incurred.

Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation commences when the assets are ready for their intended use which is generally on
commissioning. Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided under Straight Line
Method over the useful lives of assets prescribed by Schedule I of the Companies Act, 2013.
Depreciation in change in the value of fixed assets due 1o exchange rate fluctuation has been
provided prospectively over the residual life of the respective assets. Land is not depreciated.
The estimated useful lives of property plant and equipment of the company are as follows:

Building 30-60 Years

Leasehold Improvements Shorter of lease period or estimated useful
, lives

Plant and Equipment 7-25 Years

Furniture and Fixtures 8-10 Years

Vehicles ' 8-10 Years

Office Equipments 5Years

Depreciation in respect of property, plant and equipment added / disposed off during the year is

* provided on pro-rata basis, with reference to the date of addition/disposal.

Intangible Assets

“Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial

recognition, mtanglbie assets are carrled at cost !ess accumulated amortization and accumulated

" impairment loss, if any.

i)

i)

7)

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Intangible assets are amortised on straight line basis over its estimated useful life of 5 years.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and
intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. Where it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an mdl\ndual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the
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Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount .
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset {(or cash-generating unit} is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset {or cash-
generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the. asset (or cash-generating unit} in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss.
Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and
are tested annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that they might be impaired.

8) Capital Work in Progress

% Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost which includes expenses incurred during construction
“period, interest on amount borrowed for acquisition of qualifying assets and other expenses incurred
+in connection with project implementation in so far as such expenses relate to the period prior to the
commencement of commercial production.

9} Investment in Joint-Venture
Investment in Joint-venture is measured at cost less impairment loss, if any.

The joint arrangement is structured through a separate vehicle and the legal form of the separate
vehicle, the terms of the contractual arrangement and, when relevant, any other facts and

~_circumstances.gives the Company rights to the net assets of the arrangement.(i.e. the.arrangement is |-

a joint venture). The activities of the joint venture are primarily aimed to provide the third parties with
an output and the parties to the joint venture will not have rights to substantially all the economic
benefits of the assets of the arrangement.

10) Investment in subsidiaries and associates
Investments in subsidiaries and associates are recognised at cost as per IND AS 27. Except where
investments accounted for at cost shall be accounted for in accordance with IND AS 105, Non-
current Assets held for Safe and Discontinued Operations, when they are classified as held for sale,

.11} Leases

a} The Company as lessor .
Leases for which the Company is a lessor are classified as finance or operating leases. Whenever th:
terms of the lease transfer substantially allﬁthe nskg and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the

iy B A e *u&
contract is classified as finance lease. All om RI84EE are,classified as operating leases,
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Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to tie
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

b) The Company as lessee

The Company assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of the contract. The
Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease
arrangements in which it is the lessee, except for short-term leases (defined as leases with a len-
term of 12 months or less) and leases of low value assets. For these leases, the Company recognizes
the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term, unless
another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which econemic benefits from
the leased assets are consumed. Contingent and variable rentals are recognized as expense in the
periods in which they are incurred.

c) Lease Liability

The lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date are discounted using the interast
rate implicit in the lease, If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is generally the case for,
‘leases in the Company, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the
tindividual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value
:fothe right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms, security and conditions.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise:

« Fixed lease payments (including in-substance fixed payments} payable during the lease term and
under reasonably certain extension options, less any lease incentives;

«Variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate, initially measured using the index or rate
at the commencement date;

oThe amount expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees;

*The exercise price of purchase options, if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise the options; and

sPayments of penalties.for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the exercise of an opticn |

to terminate the fease.

The lease liability is presented as a separate line in the Balance Sheet.

The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on
the lease liability (using the effective interest method) and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect
the lease payments made.

The Company re-measures the lease liability (and makes a corresponding adjustment to the related
right-of-use asset) whenever: '

» The ease term has changed or there is a change in the assessment of exercise of a purchase option,
in which case the lease liahility is re-measured by discounting the revised lease payments using a

revised discount rate.
oA lease contract is modified and the lease modification is not accounted for as a separate lease, in

which case the lease liability is re-meas d;:by‘,dlscountmg the revised lease payments usmg arevisedl

. !Gh'l\ \J
discount rate. Patit J%(.’?S‘“w%
_";/cwm» E[N

d) Right of Use {(ROU) Assets

) .:: "{_JLJN{N [ {
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The ROU assets comprise the initial measurement of the corresponding lease liability, lease payments
made at or before the commencement day and any initial direct costs. They are subsequently
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Whenever the company incurs an obligation for costs to dismantle and remove a leased asset, restore
the site on which it is located or restore the underlying asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease, a provision is recognized and measured under Ind AS 37- Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets. The costs are included in the related right-of-use asset,

ROU assets are depreciated over the shorter period of the lease term and useful life of the underlying
asset, If the company’is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life. The depreciation starts at the commencement date
of the lease.

The ROU assets are not presented as a separate line in the Balance Sheet but presented below simifar
owned assets as a separate line in the PPE note under “Notes forming part of the Financial Statemenr!”.

The Company applies Ind AS 36- Impairment of Assets to determine whether a right-of-use asset is
impaired and accounts for any identified impairment loss as per its accounting policy on ‘property,
plant and equipment’,

As a practical expedient, Ind AS 116 permits a lessee not to separate non-iease components whn
bifurcation of the payments is not available between the two components, and instead accoun! i ir
any lease and associated non-lease components as a single arrangement. The Company has used this
practical expedient. '

Extension and termination options are included in many of the leases. In determining the lease term,
the management considers all facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive to exercii:
-.-an extension.option, or.not exercise a termination option. ... . : L

12) Revenue Recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, and represents
amount receivable from sale of copper products, sale of energy, lease rental and export incentives,
stated net of discounts.

Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”, introduced one single new model for
recognition of revenue which includes a 5-step approach and detailed guidelines. Among other, such
guidelines are on allocation of revenue to performance obligations within multi-elemert
arrangements, measurement and recognition of variable consideration and the timing of revenue
recognition.

The Company considers the terms of the contract in determining the transaction price. Thetransaction
price-is based upon the amount the entity expects to be entitled to in exchange for transferring 7
promised goods and services to the customer after deducting incentive programs, included but not

limited to discounts, volume rebates etc »f“ ~gh
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a) Revenue from sale of goods

Revenue from the sale copper products is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract
with a customer and excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties. Company recognizes
revenue at a point in time, when control is transferred to the customer, and the consideration agrecd
is expected to be received. Control is generally deemed to be transferred upon delivery of tle
products in accordance with the agreed delivery plan.

In case of related party transactions where related party meets the definition of customer (i.e. a partv
that has contracted with the Company to obtain goods or services that are an output of the Companv’s
ordinary activity in. exchange for consideration) and the transactions are within the scope of the
standard then the revenue is recognized based on the principles of IND AS 115.

Export incentives and subsidies are recognized when there is reasonable assurance that the Comparv
will comply with the conditions and the incentive will be received.

Revenues for services are recognized when the service rendered has been completed.

b} Revenue from services
Revenue from services mainly consists of the following;
e Income from Lease Rent |
Revenue from services, which mainly consists of lease rentals from letting of space, is recognized ovor
time;on satisfying performance obligations as per the terms of agreement, that is, by reference to ti >
period in which services are being rendered. Revenue from services, if any, involving single performai =
obligation is recognized at a point in time

s Income from job works .

Income from job work is accounted for on the basis of actual guantity dispatched. When the outcome
of a transaction involving the rendering of services can be estimated reliably, revenue associated wi.
the transaction shall be recognized by reference to the stage of completion (Percentage of Completion
Method) of the transaction at the end of the reporting period. Advances received from the customers
.. arereported as customer’s deposits unless the above conditions for revenue recognition are met,

e Sale of energy

Revenue from operations comgrises of sale of power. Revenue is recognized at an amount that reflec::
the consideration for which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for transfer of pov.r
(goods / service) to the customer. Revenue from sale of power is accounted for in accordance with La: if
provided in Power Purchase Agreement {(PPA) read with the regulations of respective regulatory
authorities and no significant uncertainty as to the measurability or collectability exist. There is no
impact on the adoption of the standard in the financial statement as the Company’s revenue primarily
comprised of revenue from sale of power and the recognition criteria of this revenue stream is taror: -
unchanged by Ind AS 115.

Contract Assets
Contract assets are recognized when there is excess of revenue earned over billings on contrac: =

Unbilled receivables where further subsequent performante obligation is pending are classifiac .
contract assets when the company does not have unconditional right to receive cash as | -7
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of completion method. Invoicing to the clients is based on milestones as defined in the contract. This
would result in the timing of revenue recognition being different from the timing of billing the
customers. Unbilled revenue for fixed price development contracts is classified as non-financial asset
as the contractual right to consideration is dependent on completion of contractual milestones,

Impairment of Contract asset _

The Company assesses a contract asset for impairment in accordance with Ind AS 109.An impairment
of a contract asset is measured, presented and disclosed on the same basis as a financial asset that is
within the scope of Ind AS 109.

Contract Liability

Contract Liability is recognized when there are billings in excess of revenues and it also includes
consideration received from customers for whom the company has pending ohligation to transfer
goods or services. '

" The billing schedules agreed with customers include periodic performance based payments and / or
milestone based progress payments. Invoices are payable within contractually agreed credit period.

‘Modification in contract

“Contracts are subject to modification to account for changes in contract specification and
requirements. The Company reviews modification to contract in conjunction with the original
contract, basis which the transaction price could be allocated. to a new performance obligation, or
transaction price of an existing obligation could undergo a change. In the event transaction price is
revised for existing obligation, a cumulative adjustment is accounted for.

c) Interest Income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefit will
~ flow-to-the company and the amount-of income-can be measured reliably-Interest-income is-accrued-
on a time basis, by reference to principal outstanding and the effective interest rate applicable, which
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial assets to that assets’ net carrying amount on initial recogniticn.

13) Retirement and other employee benefits

a) Short Term Employee Benefits

Short term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed
as the related services are provided. Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits -
that are expected to be settled wholly within twelve months after the end of the period in which the
employees render the related service are recognized in respect of employees’ services up to the end
of the reporting period.

: 'g/\ RN &
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b} Other Long Term Employee Benefits

The liabilities for earned feaves that are not expected to be settled wholly within twelve months are
measured as the present value {determined by actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit
method) of the expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees
up to the end of the reporting period and recognized in books of accounts. The present value of the
defined benefit ptan liahility is calculated using a discount rate which is determined by reference to
market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds. Re-measurements as the result
of experience adjustment and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized in statement of profit
and loss.

c) Post-Employment Benefits

The Company-operates the following post-employment schemes:
i) Defined Benefit Plan

: The liability or asset recognized in the Balance Sheet in respect of defined benefit plans is the present

-+ value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting pericd less the fair value of plan
= assefs. The Company’s net abligation in respect of defined benefit pians is ¢calculated by estimating
-the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior periods.

The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by Actuaries using the projected unit credit
method. The liability recognized for defined benefit plans is the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the reporting date less the fair value of plan assets, together with adjustments for
unrecognized actuarial gains or losses and past service costs. Net interest is calculated by applying the
discount rate at the beginning of the period fo the net defined henefit liability or asset. Past service
cost is recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the period of a plan amendment. The present
-value of the defined benefit-plan liability is calculated using-a-discount-rate which is determined by |
reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds.
Re-measurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the asset ceiling
(if applicable) and the return on plan assets (excluding net interest), is reflected immediately in the
Balance Sheet with a charge or credit recognized.in Cther Comprehensive Income (OCl} in the pericd
in which they occur. Re-measurement recognized in OCl is reflected immediately in retained earnings
and will not be reclassified to statement of profit and loss.

il) Defined Contribution Plan

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has
no obligation other than the contribution payable to the Provident fund. Contribution payable under
the provident fund is recognized as expenditure in the statement of profit and loss and/or carried to
Construction work-in-progress when an employee renders the related service.
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14) Government Grants

Government grants are recognized at their fair values when there is reasonable assurance that the

grants will be received and the Company will comply with all the attached conditions.

-8) Government grants are recognized in the statement of profit or loss on a systematic basis over the
periods in which the Company recognizes the related costs for which the grants are intended
to compensate.

b) Grants related to acquisition/ construction of property, plant and equipment are recognized as
deferred revenue in the Balance Sheet and transferred to the statement of profit or loss on a
systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of the related asset.

15) Foreign Currency Transactions

a) The functional currency and presentation currency of the company is Indian Rupee {INR).

b) Transactions in currencies other than the company’s functional currency are recorded on initial
recognition using the exchange rate at the transaction date. At each balance sheet date, foreign
currency monetary items are reported using the closing rate.

¢} Non- monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in foreign currency are not

* retranslated. Exchange difference that arise on settlement of monetary items or on reporting of
monetary items at each Balance sheet date at the closing spot rate are recognized in profit or Ioss
in the period in which they arise except for:

i) exchange difference on foreign currency borrowings related to assets under construction for
future productive use, which are included in the cost of those assets when they are regarded as
an adjustment to interest cost on those foreign currency borrowings; and

i) exchange differences on transactions entered into in order to hedge certain foreign currency risks.

i) exchange differences on monetary items receivable from or payable to a foreign operation for
which settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming part of the net
investment in the foreign operation), which are recognised initially in other comprehensive

income-and-reclassified-from-equity-to-the Statement-of Profit-and Loss on-repayment of the [

monetary items.

According to Appendix B of Ind AS 21 “Foreign currency transactions and advance con51derataon
purchase or sale transactions must be translated at the exchange rate prevailing on the date the
asset or liability is initially recognized. In practice, this is usually the date on which the advance
payment is paid or received. In the case of multiple advances, the exchange rate must be
determined for each payment and collection transaction

16) Borrowing Cost

Borrowing cost include interest expense calculated using the Effective interest method, finance
charges in respect of assets acquired on finance lease and exchange difference arising on foreign
currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the finance cost.

Borrowing costs (including other ancillary borrowing cost} directly attributable to the acquisition or
construction of a quallfymg asset are CEIpItleZ@d as a part of the cost of that asset that necessarily

] pare the asset forits intended use or sale. The
@$}%‘ as a substantial period of time.
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Transaction costs in respect of long term borrowing are amortized over the tenure of respective loans
using Effective Interest Rate (EIR)method. All other borrowing costs are recognized in the statement
of profit and loss in the period in which they are incurred.

17) Earnings per Share

Earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss before OCI for the year attributable
to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
period. Forthe purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or foss before OCl for
the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares
outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

18) Exceptional Item _

Exceptional items include income or expense that are considered to be part of ordinary activities,
however are of such significance and nature that separate disclosure enables the user of the financial
statements to understand the impact in a more meaningful manner. Exceptional items are identified
- by virtue of either their size or nature so as to facilitate comparison with prior periods and to assess
underlying trends in the financial performance of the Company.

19) Financial Guarantee Contract
Financial guarantee contract provided to the lenders of the Company by its Parent Company Is

measured at their fair values and benefit of such financial guarantee is recognized to equity as a
capital contribution from the parent.

20) Financial Instruments

_ Afinancial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity. Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized
when a Company entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments,

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and ancillary costs related to
borrowings} are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial .recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognized immediately in
statement of profit and loss.
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a) Financial Assets

i) Ciassification and Subsequent Measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

Measured at Amortized Cost

Measured at Fair Value Through .Other Comprehensive Income (FVTQOCH)

Measured at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL) and

Equity Instruments measured at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOC)

Y VYV

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period
the Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

» Measured at Amortized Cost _

The Financial assets are subsequently measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions

are met: '

¢ The asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual
cash flows; and

e The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely

payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

* After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using
the effective interest rate (EIR)method. income is recognized on an-effective interest basis for debt
instruments other than those financial assets classified as FVTPL. interest income is recognized in the
statement of profit and loss. '

> Measured at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
The financial assets are measured at the FVTOCI if both the following conditions are met:

~—+ Theobjective ofthe business modelis-achieved by both collecting contractual cash flowsand selling - -

the financial assets; and
¢ The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

Debt instruments meeting these criteria are measured initially at fair value plus transaction costs.
They are subsequently measured at fair value with any gains or losses arising on re-measurement
recognized in other comprehensive income, except for impairment gains or losses and foreign
exchange gains or losses. Interest calculated using the effective interest method is recognized in the
statement of profit and loss in investment income.

» Measured at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss {FVTPL)
Financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or Loss unless it is measured at amortised

cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income on initial recognition. Gains or losses arising
on re-measurement are recognized in the vient of profit and loss. The net gains or loss
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recognized in statement of profit and loss incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the
financial assets and is included in the “Other income” line item.

> Equity Instruments measured at Fair Value Threugh Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCH)

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS — 109 are measured at fair value, Equity instruments which
are, held for trading are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the company may
make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the
fair value. The company makes such election on an instrument-by instrument basis. The classification
is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable. In case the company decides to classify an equity
instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are
recognized in the OCI. There is no recyciing of the amounts from OCI to P&L, even on sale of
investment.

if) Derecognition

The Company derecognizes a financial asset on trade date only when the contractual rights to the cash
flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

iii) Impairment of Financial Assets

in accordance with ind AS 109, the Company uses 'Expected Credit Loss' (ECL model, for evaluating
impairment of financial assets other than those measured at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL).

Expected credit losses are measured through a loss allowance at an amount equal to:

> The 12-months expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from those default events
on the financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date}; or

> Full lifetime expected credit losses (expected credit losses that resuit from all possﬂole default

events over the life of the financial-instrument} - - - i ol sl e S T

For trade receivables Company applies 'simplified approach' which requires expected lifetime losses
to be recognized from initial recognition of the receivables. The Company uses historical default rate
to determine impairment foss on the portfolio of trade receivables. At every reporting date these
historical default rates are reviewed and changes in the forward looking estimates are analysed.

For other assets, the Company uses 12 month ELC to provide for impairment loss where there is no
significant increase in credit risk. If there is significant increase in credit risk full lifetime ELC is used.

iv) Foreign exchange gains and losses

The fair value of financial assets denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign
currency and translated at the spot rate at the end of each reporting period. For foreign currency
denominated financial assets measured at amortised cost, the exchange differences are recognized in
the statement of profit and loss.
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BHAGYANAGAR COPPER PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN: U27100TG2008PTC125034
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2023 (CONTD.)
NOTE 1: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, JUDGEMENTS & KEY ESTIMATES (CONTD.)

b} Financial Liabilities and equity instruments

Debts and equity instruments issued by a Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instruments.

Equity Instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an equity after
deducting all of its fiabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognized at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial Liabilities

i) Recognition and Initial Measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, payakles or as derivatives as appropriate. All financial liabilities are recognized initially at
fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

ii) Subsequent Measurement

Financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is
classified as FVTPL if it is classified as held for-trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on
initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses,
including any interest expense, are recognized in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. Interest expense
and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on de-
recognition is also recognized in profit or loss.

" iii) Financial Guarantee Contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the company are those contracts that require a payment to
be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a
payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts are recognized initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the lability is -
measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment requirement
of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognized less cumulative amortization.

iv) De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
or expires. . '
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BHAGYANAGAR COPPER PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN: U27100TG2008PTC125034
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2623 (CONTD.)
NOTE 1: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, JUDGEMENTS & KEY ESTIMATES (CONTD.)

v) Foreign exchange gains and losses

For financial liabilities that are denominated in a foreign currency and are measured at amortised cost
at the end of each reporting-period, the foreign exchange gains and losses are determined based on
the amortised cost of the instruments and are included in statement of profit and loss. The fair value
of the financial liabilities denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency and
translated at the spot rate at the end of the reporting period.

vi) Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must
not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the hormal course of business and in
the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the counterparty.

c) Derivative financial instruments

The Company uses derivative financial instruments such as forward, swap, options etc. to hedge

~against interest rate and foreign exchange rate risks, including foreign exchange fluctuation related to

highly probable forecast sale. The realized gain / loss in respect of hedged foreign exchange contracts
which has expired / unwinded during the year are recognized in the statement of profit and loss and
included in other operating revenue / other expense as the case may be. However, in respect of
foreign exchange forward contracts period of which extends beyond the balance sheet date, the fair
value of outstanding derivative contracts is marked to market and resultant net loss/gain is accounted
in the statement of profit and loss. Company does not hold derivative financial instruments for
speculative purposes.

d) Derivatives and Hedge Accounting.

Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value and are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at
the end of each reporting period. The resulting gains / losses are recognized in Statement of Profit
and Loss immediately unless the derivative is designated and effective as a hedging instrument, in
which event the timing of recognition in profit or loss / inclusion in the initial cost of non-financial
asset depends on the nature of the hedging relationship and the nature of the hedged item. The
Company complies with the principles of hedge accounting where derivative contracts are designated
as hedge instruments. At the inception of the hedge relationship, the Company documents the

relationship between the hedge instrument and the hedged item, along with the risk management
objectives and its strategy for undertaking hedge transaction, which is a cash flow hedge.

e) Cash Flow Hedge

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash
flow hedges is recognized in the other comprehensive income and accumulated as ‘Cash Flow Hedging
Reserve’. The gains / losses relating to the ineffective portion are recognized in the Statement of Profit
and Loss. Amounts previously recognized and agcumulated in other comprehensive income are
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BHAGYANAGAR COPPER PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN: U27100TG2008PTC125034
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2023 (CONTD.)
NOTE 1: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, JUDGEMENTS & KEY ESTIMATES (CONTD.)

transferred from equity (but not as reclassification adjustment} and included in the initial
measurement cost of the non- financial asset. Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging
instrument expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised, or when it no longer qualifies for hedge
accounting. Any gains /losses recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
at that time remain in equity and is reclassified when the underlying transaction is ultimately
recognized. When an underlying transaction is no longer expected to occur, the gains / losses
accumulated inequity are recognized immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

21) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

a) Provisions

i} Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligaticn (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

‘Provisions is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation and when the
effect of time value of money is material, Provisions are determined by discounting the expected
future cash flows (representing the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present
obligation at the balance sheet date) at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognized
as finance cost. Reimbursement expected in respect of expenditure required to settle a provision is
recognized only when it is virtually certain that the reimbursement will be received.

ii) Decommissioning Liability

Restoration/ Rehabilitation/ Decommissioning cost are provided for in the accounting period when
- the-obligation-arises based-on-the NPV of the estimated future cost-of-restoration-tobe-incurred. It-
includes the dismantling and demolition of infrastructure and removal of residual material. This
provision is based on all regulatory requirements and related estimated cost based on best available
information.

iil} Onerous Contracts
Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are recognized and measured as provisions.
An onerous contract is considered to exist when a contract under which the unavoidable costs of
meeting the obligations exceed the economic benefits expected to be received from it.

b} Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability is a p055|bie obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of. ong:or more uncertain future events beyond the
control of the Company or a present obligatio j;th!,f; 5 ic gnlzed because it is not probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to se ttlf the . A contingent liability also arises In
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BHAGYANAGAR COPPER PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN: U27100TG2008PTC125034
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2023 (CONTD.)
NOTE 1: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, JUDGEMENTS & KEY ESTIMATES (CONTD.)

extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be
measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence
in the financial statements.

¢} Contingent Assets

Contingent assets usually arise from unplanned or other unexpected events that give rise to the
possibility of an inflow of economic benefits. Contingent Assets are not recognized though are
disclosed, where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

22) Operating Segment

The identification of operating segment is consistent with performance assessment and resource
allocation by the chief operating decision maker. An operating segment is a component of the
Company that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses
including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the other components of the
Company and for which discrete financial information is available. All operating segment’s operating
results are reviewed regularly by the chief operating decision maker to make decisions about
resources to be allocated to the segments and assess their performance.

23) Employee Share based payment

Equity- settled share-based payments to empioyees are measured at the fair value of the employee
stock options at the grant date. The fair value of option at the grant date is expensed over the vesting
period with a corresponding increase in equity as “Employee Stock Options Account”. In case of
forfeiture of unvested option, portion of amount already expensed is reversed. In a situation where
the vested option forfeited or expires unexercised, the related balance standing to the credit of the

_"Employee Stock Options Account” are transferred to the “General Reserve”. When the options.are _} _.

exercised, the Company issues new equity shares of the Company of *1/- each fully paid-up. The
proceeds received and the related balance standing to credit of the Employee Stock Options Account,
are credited to share capital (nominai value) and Securities Premium Account.

24) Measurement of Fair Values

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair
values, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.

Fair value isthe price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either:

a) Inthe principal market for the asset or liahility, or

b) inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous mafketmi s:f*-b\

iccessible by the Company. The fair value of
:hat market participants would use when

)

A
an asset or a liability is measured using -!1§_’fas,-f‘
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BHAGYANAGAR COPPER PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN: U27100TG2008PTC125034
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2023 (CONTD.)
NOTE 1: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, JUDGEMENTS & KEY ESTIMATES (CONTD.)

pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. A
fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs,

25) Non-Current Assets held for sale

The Company classifies non-current assets as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered
principally through as sale rather than through continuing use of the assets and actions required to
complete such sale Indicate that it is unlikely that significant changes to the plan to sell will be made
or that the decision to sell will be withdrawn. Also, such assets are classified as held for sale only if the
management expects to complete the sale within one year from the date of classification. On-current
assets classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and the fair value
less cost to sell. Non-current assets are not depreciated or amortized.

26) Events after Reporting date

Where events occurring after the Balance Sheet date provide evidence of conditions that existed at
the end of the reporting period, the impact of such events is adjusted within the financial statements.
Otherwise, events after the Balance Sheet date of material size or nature are only disclosed.

27) Research and Development

Expenditure on research is recognized as an expense when it is incurred. Expenditure on development
which does not meet the criteria for recognition as an intangible asset is recognized as an expense
when it is incurred.,

ltems of property, plant and equipment and acquired Intangible Assets utilized for Research and
Development are capitalized and depremated in accordance with the policies stated for Property,
—Plant-and-Equipment-and-intangible-Assets.—— - e e s et
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Note: 5 Property, Plant & Eguipment i

Following are the ehanges in the carrying vaiue of Property, Plant and Equipment for the Period Ended 31st March 2023
(Al amounts are in Indian Rupees {lakhs) except share data and where ctherwise stated)

Piant & Elecirical | Furniture and
Particulars tree hold land  Factory Buiiding Machinery Installation Wehicles Fixtures Computers Grand Total
A. Gross Block ) ;
At 1st April, 2021 1,202.31 377.12 2,206.20 459.89 37.19 - 2.50 4,285.21
Adattions - 135.33 - 5.59 6.00 - 146.92
Disposals e - = =
At 31st March, 2022 1,202.31 377.12 2,341.53 459.85 42.78 6.00 2.50 4,432.13
Additions - 355.96 - 404.23 0.35 1.28 761.82
Disposals - - 57.60
At 31st March, 2023 : 3605
B. Depreciation , :
At 1st April, 2021 - 66.95 242.22 55.38 7.45 - 1.00 372.99
Charge for the Year - 23.88 146.10 29.13 457 | 0.02 0.80 204.49
Disposals - - : -
At 31st March, 2022 - 90.83 388.32 84.50 12.01 0.02 i.79 577.48
Charge for the Year 23.88 159.13 . 28.89 17.93 : 0.60 0.76 231.20
Disposals . 28.80
At 31st March, 2023 e _ 1 _ : _ T : _

C. Net Block {(A-B)
At 31st March, 2022
At 31st March, 2023




Bhagyanagar Copper Private Limited - Macch 2023

Notes to the financial statements for the year ehded 31 March 2023

(All amounts are in Indian Rupees {lakhs) except share data and where othenvise stated)

<]
Unsecured, Considerad good.
| (a} Security Deposits
Note
6(a) Security deposits primarily include Depesits to Shipping Agencies and Electricity deposits.
7 [
[(Valued at lower of Cost and Net Realisable Value)
Raw Materials 4,023.61
Work in Process ' 624.44 |
Finished Goods ' ' | 270,78
Material - in- Transit | | 679.17
Note All the Working Capital Facilities of the company are secured by hypothecation of inventories{Part of Current Assets) . The
7ia) monthly statements filed by the company with the bank(s) in respect of such facilities are in agreement with the books of
accounts.
a
{i} Cash on hand
(it} Balances with Bank
- In Foreign Currency account
10
tEarmarked Balances with Bank*®
(i) Margin Money Deposit Agalnst Bank Guarantee
s o i) -Acerued Interest en-Fixed-Deposit-
Notes:
* Earmarked balances with banks are denominated and held in Indian Rupees.
10(a) Margin money represents money with original tnaturity of more than 3 months having remaining maturity of less than 12
rnonths from the Balance sheet date
11
{a} Income tax Recelvable
Less: Provision for Taxes
{5) MAT Credit Entitlemeant
12 :
(a) Balances with Statutory Authorities " 2,01L65 1,369.32
(b} Advarices To Suppliers 2,146.61 1,639.62
{c) Loan to staff ] ] 8.77 2.76
Notes: {S}%}%EQQ}}K
12(a) The Balance with Statutory Authorities includes IGST; éf?uhd (paid on“'?;‘\ﬁ,g'rts) Réceivable -Rs.409.40 lacs

545 m‘r-:-?!-'-\')o %

No advances are due from directors or other officer ‘Qj:jhe: ? any;o .of them elther severally or jointly with any other

i
. . S
persons or advances due to firms or private compangi‘ﬁ is_‘p‘g}gt;y@
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Bhagyanagar Copper Private Limited - March 2023 _

Notes to the financial staiements for the year ended 31 March 2023 !
{All amounts are in Indian w:tmmm :mrs& mxnawn share data and where otherwise stated)

Considered good — Unsecured ;
Undisputed trade receivables considered good
Undisputed trade receivables - credit impaired
Disputed trade receivables considered good :
Disputed trade réceivables - credit impaired |
Less: >=oim nce *9‘ mxvmnﬁma credit losses

As at 31.03.2023
Trade receivables ageing schedule

Oustanding for following periods from due date of payment as an Balance sheet date

More ﬁrm: 3

; Total
Years:

Particulars Less than 6 minth |6 months to 1 year {1to 2 years 2-3 Years

Undisputed trade receivables considered good 1,751.08 475 - - - 1,755.83
Undisputed trade recelvables - credit impaired - - . - = = -
Disputed trade receivables considered good = i - & i -
Disputed trade receivables - credit impaired = - o - i -
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses & = - b - -

Total Trade receivables 1,751.08 4.75 s - - 1,755.83

As at 31.03.2022

Trade receivables ageing schedule Oustanding for following periods from due date of payment as on Balance sheet date

Particulars

Less than 6 mnth

6 months te 1 year

1to 2 years

2-3 Years

More .ﬂrwz 3
years

Total

Undisputed trade receivables considered good
Undisputed trade receivables - credit impaired
Disputed trade receivables considered good
Disputed trade receivables - credit impaired
tess: Allowance for expected credit losses

2.431.07

11.04

3.76

= 2,445.88

Balance as at year end

2,431.07

11.04

3.76

- 2,445.88

Note :

1) All the Trade Receivables are Unsecured and good
2) No Debts due by Directors or other officers of the company or any of them efther severally or jointly with any other person or mm_uﬁm due by firms
or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner ora director or a member.

March 2022:2445,88 Lakhs) which is the carrying value of trade recelvable m#m,. allowance for credi losses.

47 All the Working Capital Facllities of the company are secured by s<u05momﬂ_m

?ow Trade

{ e

2

statements filed by the company with the bank{s) in respect of such faciliies m_.m _m%mmﬁm )

Re .<M
a1

3) Tha company considers its maximurm exposure to credit risk with respect to customers as at 31st March 2023 to be Rs.

M,ww takhs (31st

mw:umn of Current >mmmﬂmu . ._._._m monthly




Bhagyanagar Copper Private Limited- March 2023

{All amounts are in Indian Rupees (lakhs) except share data and where otherwise stated)

. . As at 31st March 20623 As at 31st March 2022
13|Equity Share Capital Number Amount Number Amount
Authorised - ’
20,000,000 (March 31, 2022 : 20,000,000)Equity Shares of ,

Rs. 10 each 2,00,00,000 2,000 2,00,00,000 2,000
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up shares :
20,000,000 (March 31, 2022 : 20,000,000)Equity Shares of !
Rs. 10 each fully paid up 2,00,00,000 2,000 M.ooboboo. 2,000
Total issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share capital 2,00,00,000 2,000 2,00,00,000 2,000

a) Term/rights attached to Equity Shares

The company has only one class of issued equity shares having a par value of Rs 10/-
share. In the event of liquidation of the company. The holders of equity shares will be entitled to recelve remaining assets of th

all prefential amounts. The distribution will be In proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.
b) Reconciliation of Shares Outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year:

As at 31st March N,oNN

e As at 3ist March 2023 .
Number Amount Number Amount
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 2,00,00,000 2,000 2,00,00,000 . 2,000
Shares Issued during the year - i = : =
Shares bought back during the year - - = -
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 2,00,00,000 2,000 2,00,00,000 2,000
¢} Particulars of share holders holding more than 5% shares in the Company i
Name of Shareholder As at 31st March 2023 As at 31st March 2022
No. of Shares | %ofHolding | No.of Shares | % of Holding
held held M
BHAGYANAGAR INDIA LIMITED 1,99,98,900 100 1,99,99,900 100
Devendra Surana® 100 0 © 100 0
Total 2,00,00,000 100 2,00,00,000 100

per share. Each shareholder is entitled to one vote per share. one vote per
e company, after distribution of

As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/members and other declarations received from m:m_‘mso_mma regarding heneficial
interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownership of shares. ,

d} Shares

EreTmn

the end of the year

Held by Promoters at
Vs o

EHAGYANAGAR INDIA LIMITED

ofishe
~1,99,99,900

Devendra Surana*®

100

* 100 shares of Devendra surana - Beneficial interest held by Bhagyanagar India Limited
The shareholding information has been extracted from the records of the Cornpany including register of shareholders/ members and is based on legal

ownership of shares.
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Bhagyanagar Copper Private Limited - March 2023

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Al amounts are in Indiar: Rupees-(lakhs) except share data and where otherwise stated)

14
Balance at 1 April 2022 (A}
Profit for the year 403.08
Other Comprehensive Income (net of tax} - - -
Reserve created during the year - - -
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 2022-23 (B) 403,08 - 403.08
Balance at 31 March 2023 C=(A+B) 801.86 4386.64 1,288.50
Balance at 1 April 2021 (D) ' {272.44) 486.64 214.20
Profit for the year 671.22 - 671.22
Cther Comprehensive Income {net of tax} - - -
Total Comprehensive income for the Year 2021-22  (E) 671,22 - 671.22
Balance at 31 March 2022 F=(D+E) 398.78 486.64 885,472
The Description,Nature and Purpose of the each reserve with in equity are as follows
General Reserve: This reserve is created by an appropriation from one companent of equity (gensrally retained eamings) fo
another, not being an item of OCI. Tha same can be ulillsed in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act 2013,
Retained earnings
Retained earnings comprises of prior year's undistributed earnings after taxes along with current year profit.
Capital Reserve
Capital Resere is created on account of Revaluation of Land at the time of conversion of Land from inventory to Capital Assetand
the same Is not available for distribution to the sharehoiders.
15
Secured (Loan from banks)
(a) Term Loan - HDFC Bank 15 (a) 555,06 858,67
( b)Guaranteed Emergency Credit Line - HDFC Bank 15 (b} 759.58 875,05
(A) 1,314.64 1,734.72
Vehicle Loans
(a) HDFCBank 15 (¢} 243.23
{b) Benz Financial Services 15 {d) 82,32
(A) 1,640.18 1,734,72
Less: Current maturities of long term borrowings (B) (B} 519.84 42537
Total C = (A-B} - 1,120.34 1,309.35
" |UnSecired - o b - B
{Loan from related parties)*
{a} Loan from holding Company 15 {&) 1,312.86 1,041,53
(&) Loan from Directors 15 (f) - © 186,71
{c} Loan from Associate Companies 15 (g} 1,722.81 1,113.02
(D} 3,035.68 2,341,26
Notes
15 (a) Term loan - HDFC Bank
The term loan san¢tioned by HDFC Bank in April,2020 - Rs.1461 lacs . The loan is secured by personal guarantee of
Directors, Corporate Guarantee of Holding Company and an Exclusive charge on entire Current Assets and Fixed Assets of the
Company .It is also Secured by certain Fixed assets of the Holding Company.The Principal is repayable in 57 Manthly
Instalments ending in November,2024 and carties a floating rate of interest .The Principal repayable during FY 2023-24
amounting to Rs.323.26 lacs- is classifled under Current Maturities of Long Term Debt-Note:16
15 {h) Guaranteed Emergency Credit Line{GECL-WCTL} - HDFC Bank

Guaranteed Emergency Credit Line {GECL) of Rs.372 lacs Is sanctioned by HDFC Bank by way of Working Capital Term

Loan{WCTL) in the month of November,%lﬂ)}ﬁq.,mgig is a Principal Moratorium of 12 Months and the Principal repayment starts
el . i 2

tn the Month of December, 2021, The “Sa‘nys,‘, p}avalgilg‘ in 26 equal Menthly Instalments and carries floating interest rate .The

loan is secured by personal guaray ‘\gfﬁf»ﬂfﬁ%’fﬁ?s,@g}},‘p:g rate Guarantee of Holding Company and ah Exclusive charge on entire
Current Assets and Fixed Assets ?Z@"e COT@%}X&.II ﬁ‘s}?,Secured by certain Fixed assets of the Holding Company.The
Principal repayable during FY 2023228 é;ﬁégﬁp,tmg ) Rs’-fi;%.Bl facs Is classified under Currant Maturities of Long Term Debt-
Note:16. ‘ﬂ%{@-(}iﬁﬁw it
+ L///4
\"‘\ﬂf?aﬁvﬁ-f:f'm‘



15 {c]

15 {d)

Notes:

15 {e)

15 (f)

15 (g)

Bhagyanagar Copper Private Limited - March 2023

Notes to the financlal statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amounts are in Indlan Rupses (lakhs) except share data and where otherwise stated)

Guaranteed Emergency Credit Line {(GECL) Extension of Rs.540 lacs is sanctioned by HDFC Bank by way of Working Capital
Term Loan{WCTL) In the month of January,2022,There is a Principal Moratorium of 24 Months and the Principal repayment
starts in the Month of January,2024. The loan is secured by personal guarantee of Directors,Corporate Guarantee of Holding
Company and an Exciusive charge on entire Current Assets and Fixed Assets of the Company .It is also Secured by certain Fixed
assets of the Holding Company. The Loan is repayable in 36 equal Monthly instalments starting fram January,2024 and carries
a floating interest rate.The Principal repayable during FY 2023-24 amounting to Rs.12.82 lacs is classified under Current
Maturities of Long Term Debt-Note:16.

Vehicle Loan - HDFC Bank

The company avalled a Car loan of Rs.253.62 lakhs from HDFC Bank during the FY 2022-23.The Loan'is repayable in 60
Monthly instalments starting from lanuary,2623 and carries floating interest rate.The loan is secured by exclusive charge on
specific vehicles to specified lenders.The Principal repayable during FY 2023-24 amounting to Rs.43.76 lacs is classified under
Current Maturities of Long Term Debt-Note:16.

Vehicle Loan - Mercedes Benz Financial Services Pvt Limited

The company availed a Car loan of Rs.84.64 lakhs from Mercedes Benz Financial Services Pyt Limited during the FY 2022-
23.The Loan is repayable in 60 Monthly instalments starting from January,2023 and carries floating Interest rate..The loan is
secured by exclusive charge on specific vehicles to specified lenders.The Principal repayable during FY 2028-24 amounting to
Rs.14.69 lacs is classified under Current Maturities of Long Term Debt-Note:16.

Details of Unsecured Loans*

Loan from Holding Company Balance as Balance as
Name of the company on 31.03,2023 on 31.03.2022
Bhagyanagar India Limited 1,312.86 1,041.53
Total 1,312.86 1,041.53

*Unsecured Loan have been taken for business purpose at a mutually agreed rate of interest.There is no specific repayment
Schedule.

Loan from Director Balance as | Balance as
Name of the Director : on 31.08.2023 on 31.03.2022
Devendra Surana - 186,71
Total ' S - 186.71

*Unsecured Loan have heen taken for business purpose at a mutually agreed rate of interest.There is no specific repayment
Schedule.

Balance as Balance as
Loan from Associate Companies on 31.03.2023 on 31.03.2022
Name of the company
Surana Telecom and Power Ltd 1,722.81 1,113.02
Total ' 1,722.81 1,113.02

*Unsecured Loan have been taken for business purpose at a mutually agreed rate of interest. There is no specific repayment
Schedule.
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Bhagyanagar Copper Private Uimited - March 2023

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amounts are in Indian Rupees {lakhs) except share data and where otherwise stated)

i6
: ecured
Cash Credit 16(a) 745.51 209.02
Export Packaging Credit 16(h) 5,801.75 2,488.77
Buyers Credit - 907.67
Working Capital Loan ICICl Bank’ - 1,200.00
6,547.26 4,805.46
Current Maturities on Long Term Debt
{a) Term loan - HDFC Bank 16(g) 323.26 308.25
(b) Guaranteed Emergency Credit Line - HDFC Bank 16{d) 138,14 117.12
(¢) HDFC Bank - Vehicle Loan 16(e} 43.76 -
(d} Benz Financial Services - Vehicle Loan 16(f} 14,68 -
519.84 425,37
UnSecured
(Loan from related partles)*®
{a} Loan from Directors 16(g) 264.27
{b) Loan from Associate Companies 16{h) 123.03
387.30
TOTAL ‘ ) 7,454.40 5,230.83
Notes:
16(a) ‘
Cash Credit foan from HDFC Bank and ICICI Bank is secured by personal guarantee of Directors,Corporate Guarantee of Holding
Company and an Exclusive charge on entire Current Assets and Fixed Assets of the Company.The Company has taken loans
against security of current assets and monthly statements of current assets filed by the Company with bank are in agreement
with the books of accounts. It is repayable on demand and carries a floating interest rate.
16(h)
The company has availed Export packing credit from HDFC Bank and ICIC! Bank .This facility is granted the Exporter Company
for Financing its working capital needs asa Sub limit to Cash Credit which is eligible for interest Subvention of 3% .
16(c) Term loan - HDFC Bank:
Principal amount of Term ioan from HDFC Bank repayakle within one year is grouped under Current Maturities. (Also See
Note:15(a}))
16(d) Guaranteed Emergency Credit Line - HDFC Bank:
_ Principal amount of Guaranteed Emergency Credit Line from HOFC Bank repayable within one year is grouped under Current
Maturities.{Alsa See Note:15(b)) T T oo
16(e) Vehicle Loan - HDFC Bank
Principal amount of Vehicle Loan from HDFC Bank repayable within one year is grouped under Current Maturities.(Also See
Note:15(c)}
16(f) Vehide Loan - Mercedes Benz Financlal Seryices Put Limited
Principal amount of Vehicle Loan from Mercedes Benz Financial Services Put Limited repayable within one year is grouped
under Current Maturities.(Also See Note:15(d)}
16(g) Loan from Director* Balance as Balance as
Name of the Director on 31.03.2023 on 31.03.2022
Devendra Surana 264.27 -
Total 264,27 -
Balance as Balance as
16(h) Loan fram Associate Companies* on 31.03.2023 on 31.03.2022

Name of the company
Surana Infocom Pvi LTD

123.03 -

Total 123.03 -

*Insecured Loan have heen taken for business purpose at a mutually agreed rate of interest.There isno specific repayment
Schedule, ‘
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Bhagyanagar Copper Private Limited - March 2023

Notes to the finanzial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All smounts are in Indian Rupees (lakhs) except share data and where otherwise stated)

1 Deferred Tax Llablhty at the begmmng of theuyear —
|Add: Deferred tax Liability on property, plant and equipment
Deferred Tax Liabliity at the end of the year

Ha) Statutt:ry Dues P*é\“table _
(b} Advance from Customers

|(a) Provision for employee beneﬂts
I{k) Provision for Expenses

{a) Sale of Products
Copper & Allied Products - Domestic
Copper Products - Export

Less: GST

(a) Interest on Fixed Deposits
“|(bYSundry Balances Wrtien Batk ™ "7 7
(¢} Other Income

Opening Stock Raw Materlals
Add:Purchases {Net of GST}
l.ess:Closing Stock Raw Materials

27,222.61

30,808.33

GROSS SALES 58,030.94
' 6,806.05

NET SALES 51,224.89

2,157.60
49,009.27
4, 023 61

d‘w’“ ,,,'*i*..,.\_m,,h
i AL‘. &

\.,,,4 el

CF‘ERIFRFD f\}‘
COONTANTS UJ
FER-O18828

23,049.88
37,314.68
60,364.56

5,857.12
54,507.44

1,480.42
50,925.98 |
2,157.60




Bhagyanagar Copper Private Limited - March 2023

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amounts are in Indian Rupees (iakhs) except share data and where otherwise stated)

24
Inventories at the Beginning of the year
Finished Goods - -
Semi Finished Goods - -
Material in Transit _ - -
Total (A) ' N -
Inventories at the end of the year
Finished Goods 270.78 -
Semi Finished Goods - 624.44 -
Material in Transit 678.17 -
Total {B)
1,574.40 -
Total C={A-B) {1,574.40) -
25
|(a} Salaries, Wages and Other Employee Benefits
|{b) Contribution To Provident And Other Funds
26
(a) Interest on borrowing from Banks :
- Cash Credit & Others ’ 283.63 206.62
- Long Term Loan . 54.06 78.31
- Guaranteed Emergency Credit Line 72,78 34.57
- Financial Charges 38.63 32.40
{h) Interest expense On Unsecured Loan 295,50 346.17

o
CHARTERED
AOCOUMTANTS

FRE-GILERES ,!
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Bhagyanagar Copper Private Limlted - March 2023

Notes {o the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

{All amounts are in Indlan Rupees (lakhs) except share data and where otherwise stated)

Consumption Of Stores and Spare Parts
Processing and Conversion charges
Power And Fuel
Repairs

Bufldings

Machinery

Others
CSR Expense
Insurance
Rates And Taxes
Packing And Forwarding
Other Miscellaneous Expenses
Payments To The Auditors

- for Statutory Audit

Rent
Post.Tel & Telephone
Legal & Licence Fees
Advertisement And Sales Promotion
Professional Charges
Travelling & Conveyance
Sundry Balances Written Off
Office Maintenance
Watch & Ward
Membershig & Subscription
Printing & Stationery
Filing Fees
Donation
Commission On Sales/Purchases

‘ OtherExpenses
Water Charges




BHAGYANAGAR COPPER PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U27100TG2008PTC125034

NOTES TG FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2023 (CONTD.)
NOTE 1: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, JUDGEMENTS & KEY ESTIMATES (CONTD.)
Notes Forming part of Financial Statements

28) Related party transactions

a, List of Related Parties:

i. Holding Company: Bhagyanagar India Limited
Key Managerial Persennal & their relatives:
{ij Narender Surana ‘ (i) Devendra Surana
(iti) Rakesh kumar Agarwal(Whole Time Director) (iv) Surendra Bhutoria (CFO)
(v} Manish Surana {vi) Nivriti Samkit Jain (vii) Advait Surana

ii. Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by key management personnel or their relatives:
(i) Surana Telecom and Power Limited (iv) Tejas India Solar Energy Private Limited
(i} - Surana Solar Limited
(i}  Surana Infocom Private Limited.

A. list of Transactions Occurred during the year are as follows: Amount in Lacs (INR)
Related Party Nature of transaction 2022-23 2021-22

Tejas India Solar Energy Pvt Ltd Purchase Of Solar - 15,68

Surana Solar Limited Purchase of copper - 912.76
Surana Solar Limited Sale of Aluminum Scrap - 0.54
Bhagyanagar India Ltd Purchase of copper 138.50 2333.57
Bhagyanagar india Ltd Job work paid - 74.91
‘Bhagyanagarindialtd @ Saleofcopper 17 1808.12 0 3630.18
Bhagyanagar India Ltd Jobh work income 3839.05 1052.81
Bhagyanagar India Ltd Interest Expense 7 105.03 '201.12
Surana Telecom & Power Limited Interest Expense 81.93 112.93
| Surana Infocom Private l.imited interest Expense 10.04 7.40
Devendra Surana : Interest Expense 98.50 2471
}Rakesh Agarwal . Remuneration —WTD . 30.28 26.45
Manish Surana Y 55y, | 16.92 .
FPH ww'\_r\({ F‘y}“
55 azgfﬂ_-
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BHAGYANAGAR COPPER PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN: U27100TG2008PTC125034
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2023 {(CONTD.)
NOTE 1: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, JUDGEMENTS & KEY ESTIMATES (CONTD.)

Nivriti Samkit Jain Salary 21.60 -
Advait Surana Salary 10.80 -
Bhagyanagar Ventures Pvt Ltd Lease Rent Paid 8.22 8.21
&M Surana Foundation Trust CSR Expenée , 1.21 -

B. List of Transactions Occurred during the year are as follows: .
Balance Outstanding Nature of transaction 2022-23 2021-22
Suranz Solar Limited Trade Payable - 282.99

€. Details of Loan given and recovered with the related parties during the year:

Related Party Nature of transaction 2022-23 2021-22
Opening Balance 1041.53 2912.60

BHAGYANAGAR INDIA Loan given d%xring the year (net of 271.34 il

LUMITED amount received back)

Repaid during the Year - 1871.07
Balance at the end of the Year (cr}* 1312.86 1041.53
Opening Balance 186.71 593.49
I — ‘Loan taken 2720.65 528.91
Repaid during the Year 2643.09 935.69
Closing Balance ' 264.27 186.71
Surana Telecom & Power | Opening Balance 1113.02 667.97
Limited Loan taken 609.79 2522.13
Repaid duringtheYear. . | . - . | 207710
Closing Balance ; 1722.81 1113.01
Surana Infocom Private | Opening Balance - 332.60
~ Limited Loan taken 173.03 335.66
Repald during the Year 50.00 668.26

Closmg Balance 123.03 =

{(*) There are multiple transactions with the party. The amount represents net balance of multiple
transactions during the year.

29) Disclosure required under Section 186(4) of the Companies Act 2013
In the opinion of Board of Directors and to the best of their knowledge and belief, the above disclosure
pursuant to Securities Exchange Board Of India (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirement and
Regulation 2015) and Section 186 of the Companies Act 2013.

30) In the opmlon of Board of Dlrectors nd:o the best of their knowledge and belief, the value on
4 gV nces in the ordinary course of business, would not

‘a stated in the Balance Sheet.

he less than the amount at wh I'L

e
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BHAGYANAGAR COPPER PRIVATE LIMITED

. CIN:; U27100TG2008PTC125034
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2023 (CONTD.)
NOTE 1: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, JUDGEMENTS & KEY ESTIMATES (CONTD.)

31) The Company is primarily engaged in the manufacture of copper products which as per Indian
Accounting Standard — 108 on ‘Operating Segments’ is considered to be the only reportable
business segment. The Company is operating in India which is considered as a single geographical

segment.

32) Auditors’ Remuneration includes:

Amount in Lacs {INR)

Particulars For the year ended 31 March | For the year ended
' 2023 31%t March 2022
Statutory Auditors
Audit Fees 2.00 1.00
Certification & Other Services - -
Total 2.00 1.00
33) Sitting Fee to Directors
Particulars For the year ended 31 For the year ended 315
March 2023 March 2022
Sitting Fee to Directors NIL NIL

34) TAX Expenses Amount in Lacs (INR)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended 31%
' 31% March 2023 March 2022
Current Tax
Current Tax Expense for the Year 107.01 112,04
Deferred Tax ‘
Deferred Tax Liability/(Asset 82.58 -
"MAT Creditentitlement for current year 4840 - - o e (AA204) - ey
Total Income Tax Expense 237,99 -

35) Reconciliation of estimated income tax expenses at Indian statutory income tax rates to
income tax expenses reported in statement of profit and loss:

Amount in Lacs {{NR)

Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
315t March 2023 315t March 2022

Income hefore taxes 641.07 671.22

Applicable Tax Rate 16.69% 16.69%

Estimated Income Tax Expense 107.01 112.04

Add: Effect of non-deductible expenses - -

{Less):Effect of allowances for tax purpose - -

Add/(Less): Effect of deferred tax 82.58 -

Add/(Less): Effect of MAT Credit P _ 4840 (112.04)

Tax Expense in Statement of Profit and Losg . 237.99 -

i
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BHAGYANAGAR COPPER PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U27100TG2008PTC125034

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2023 (CONTD.)

NOTE 1: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, JUDGEMENTS & KEY ESTIMATES (CONTD.}

36) Net Debt Reconciliation

Amount in Lacs (INR)

Particulars Fortheyear ended | For the year ended
31** March 2023 31% March 2022

Opening Balances of Borrowings _ 3,650.61 5,704.55

Add: Proceeds from Non Current Borrowings 505.41 -

Less: Repayment of Non Current Borrowings - 2053.94

Closing Balance of Borrowings 4,156.02 3,650.61

37} As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2015, a CSR committee has been formed by the company.
The disclosure in respect of CSR Expenditure during the year as aligned with the CSR Policy of the
Company which is in line with the activities specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013 is

as under:
Amount Lacs (INR)
Particulars For the year ended | Forthe year ended
31%t March 2023 31%t March 2022
Gross amount required to be spent by the Company
during the year 6.26
Related Party Transaction as per Ind AS 24 in relation
tg SR activities (Refer note: 28 )
GM Surana Trust 1.21
Others v . 5.04
Amount Lacs {INR)
Particulars Amount | Amount yet | Amoun | Amount yet
‘ Paid to be paid tPaid | to be paid
For the year ended 31% | For the year ended
March 2023 31t March 2022
(i) Construction/ acquisition of | - - -
any asset
| (i) .. _Purposesotherthan(iYabove |6.26 |- |- |- .| .].

TOTAL 6.26 - - -

1.“Rural Development” - 1."Rural Development” - “Integrated

“Integrated Village Development | Village Development (VD) Project” 2.

(IVD) Project” “Promoting Healthcare including
Nature of CSR 2. “Promoting Healthcare preventive health care - Health Project
activities including preventive health care - | 3, Promoting Education
undertaken by Health Project 4, Environmental Sustainability
the company 5. Animal Welfare

271Pare




BHAGYANAGAR COPPER PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U27100TG2008PTC125034

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2623 {CONTD.)

NOTE 1: SIGNIFICANT ACCCUNTING POLICIES, JUDGEMENTS & KEY ESTIMATES (CONTD.)

CSR Movement Amount Lacs (INR)

Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
31% March 2023 315t March 2022

Opening Balance 6.26 -
Gross amount required to be spent by the Company i }
during the year
Actual Spent 6.26 -
(Excess)/Short Spent - -

38) The information regarding amounts due to creditors registered under the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006, has been given to the extent available with the Company based
on the intimation received from the suppliers regarding their status under the Act. The required
disclosures of outstanding dues of micro, small & medium enterprises are as under:

Amount Lacs {INR}

Sl | Particulars For the year | For the
No ended  31% | year ended
March 2023 31% March
2022
a) | Principal amount remaining unpaid as at 31st March 1.07 -
B} | Interest amount remaining unpaid as at 31st March - .
¢} | Interest paid in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and o -
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 along with the
amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the
appointed day during the year.
d) | Interest due and payable for the period of delay in making - -
| payment {which have been paid but beyond the appointed day
during the year) but without adding the interest specified
under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,
2006.
e} | Interest accrued and remaining unpaid as at 31st March - -
f) | Further interest remaining due and payable even in the - .
- | succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as | -
above are actually paid to the small enterprise.
39) Earnings Per Share (EPS}

S Amount Lacs {INR)
Particulars 2022-23 2021-22
Net Profit after Tax 403.08 B671.21 -
Net Profit after Tax available for equity share holders - For
Basic and Diluted EPS 403.08 671.21
Weighted Average No. Of Equity Shares For Basic EPS (No.) 2,00,00,000 2,00,00,000
Weighted Average No. Of Equity Shares For Diluted EPS (No.) | 2,00,00,000 2,00,00,000
Nominal Value of Equity Shares 2000.00 2000.00

- Basic Earnings Per Equity Share 2.02 3.36
2.02 3.36

Diluted Earnings Per Equity Share

28 Pape




BHAGYANAGAR COPPER PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN: U27100TG2008PTC125034
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2023 (CONTD.)
NOTE 1: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, JUDGEMENTS & KEY ESTIMATES (CONTD.)

40} Contingent Liabilities and Commitments {to the extent not provided for} _
Amount Lacs (INR)

Particulars As at 31-03- As at 31-03-
2023 2022

Contingent Liabilities — Electricity Demand 154.65 154.65

Guarantees issued by the Bank 207.81 -

Note: TSSPDCL has raised a demand of Rs.154.65Lacs for previous years when the company was not under the
control of current management. The demand is being contested and has been stayed by the Honorable High
Court of Telangana.

41) Retirement and Other Employees Benefits

The Company's employee benefits primarily cover provident fund, gratuity and leave encashment,
Provident fund is a defined contribution scheme and the company has no further obligation beyond
the contribution made to the fund. Contributions are charged to the Profit & Loss account in the year
in which they accrue. Gratuity liability is a defined benefit obligation and is based on the actuarial
valuation done. The gratuity liability and the net periodic gratuity cost is actually determined after
considering discounting rates, expected long term return on plan assets and increase in compensation
fevel, All actuarlal gain/ losses are immediately charged to the Profit & Loss account and are not
deferred.

29[ Pa ge




BHAGYANAGAR COPPER PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN: U27100TG2008PTC125034
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2023 {CONTD.}

NOTE 1: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, JUDGEMENTS & KEY ESTIMATES (CONTDB.)

A Expenses recognized in the Profit & Loss Account
Particulars Gratuity
2022-23 2021-22
[ Current service cost 6,31 B,
Interest cost 7 1.59 .
Expected Return on Planned Assets 1.47 .
Net Actuarial Loss/ (Gain) recognized in the year 2.32 s
Expenses recognized in Statement of Profit & Loss 10,18 -
B Change in Present value of obligation during the year ended 315t March, 2023
Particuiars Gratuity
2022-23 2021-22
Present Value of obligation as at beginning of the year 21.91 -
Interest Cost 1.59 :
Current Service Cost 6.31 -
Benefits Paid-Actuals - =
Actuarial {Gain)/ Loss on Obligations 3.75 _
Present Value of obligation as at end of the year 33.57 -
C . | Change in fair vaiue of Plan Assets during the year ended 31st March, 2023
Particulars Gratuity
2022-23 2021-22
Fair value of Plan Assets as at the beginning of the year 21.00 -
Expected Return on Plan Assets 1.47 -
Contributions - -
Benefits Paid . -
Fair value of Plan Assets as at the end of the year 22.48 -
D | Actuarial Gain/ loss recognized
Particulars Gratuity
2022-23 2021-22
Actuarial (Gain} / Loss for the year —Obligation 3.76
Total Loss for the Year 3.76 -
Actuarial {Gain) / Loss recognized in the year 3.76 -
E Actuarial assumption
Particulars Gratuity
2022-23 2021-22
Discount rate used 7.25% =
Salary escalation 7.00% =

';fi|pé§ﬂ“ﬁ




BHAGYANAGAR COPPER PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN: U27100TG2008PTC125034
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2023 {CONTD.)
NOTE 1: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, JUDGEMENTS & KEY ESTIMATES {CONTD.)

42} Income tax assessment of the company, "Bhagyanagar Copper Private Limited" for the assessment year
2021-22 was completed on December 30, 2022, and the department has raised a demand for Rs. 66.42
crore on some unreasonable grounds. The company has appealed against it to the Commissioner of the
Income Tax {Appeals) and a petition for review of order/ stay of demand has also been fited before the
High-Pitched Assessment Committee. The company has been advised by the fegal experts that it has a
strong/ solid case, and hence, no provision has been made in the books of accounts.

43) sales (Gross) during the year:

SL.No. Particulars 2022-23 2021-22
Amount | Amount
Qty{MTs) (Rs.inLac) | Qty(MTs) | (Rs.in Lac)
i Copper 6072.41 45824.39 7345.88 55708.36
i By-Products - 8269.73 | - 3458 .33
iii Job Work Charges 14766.80 3936.82 7715.51 1197.88
TOTAL 20839.21 58030.94 15061.39 | 60364.56
44) Raw material consumed during the year; Amount in Lacs (INR)
1 SL.No. ‘ Particulars 2022-23 2021-22
[ Copper/Copper Scrap 42337.85 48886.60
ii Others 3231.02 1362.21
TOTAL : 45568.87 50248.81

45) Details of imported and indigenous raw materials, spares and packing materials consumed:

Amount in Lacs (INR})

Particulars 2022-23 2021-22
| % of Total % of Total
Value Consumption Value Consumption
Raw materials & Components
(a) Imported 40288.82 88.41 43519,12 86.60 - _
| (b) Indigenous o 5280.05 1159 672968 | 1340 |

TOTAL 45568.87 106.00 - 50248.81 100
Stores & Spare Parts (including '
consumed for repair)
(a) Imported 12550 22.70 286.97 21.07
(b} Indigenous 427.55 77.30 1075.24 78.93
TOTAL 553.05 100,00 1362.21 100

46) CIF Value-of Imports Amount in Lacs (INR)

Particulars 2022-23 2021-22

Raw material / Traded Goods 40288.82 43519.12

Stores & Spares 125.50 286.97

Total 40414.32 43806.10

EANELE




BHAGYANAGAR COPPER PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN: U27100TG2008PTC125034
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2023 (CONTD.)
NOTE 1: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, JUDGEMENTS & KEY ESTIMATES (CONTD.)

47) Earning in Foreign Currency

Particulars 2022-23 2021-22
FOB value of Export sale of goods 30808.23 37314.68
Total 30808.23 37314.68

48) Financial instruments and Risk management
The fair value of financial assets and liabilities is included in the amount at which the instrument could
be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

The fair value of trade receivable, trade payable and other current financial assets and liabilities is
considered to be equal to the coiling value amounts of these items due to their short term nature.
Where such items are non-current in nature the same has been classified as level 3 and fair value
determine using discounted cash value basis.

Set out below is a comparison, by class, of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company’s financial
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that are reasonable approximates of fair vaiues:

Particulars - Carrying value Fair value

- - | 315t March 2023 | 31% March 2022 | 31 March 2023 | 31% March 2022
Other Financial Assets 79.81 47.49 79.81 47.49
Total Financial Assets - 79.81 47.49 79.81 47.49
Borrowings 4156.02 3650.61 4156.02 3650.61
Total Financial Liabilities | 4156.02 3650.61 A4156.02 3650.61

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the input that is significant
to the fair value measurement as a whaole:

“a) "Level 1 = Quoted (Unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets of liabi litigs™

b) Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and
¢) Level 3 — Inputs which are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets & liabilities. Involvement of external
valuers is decided by the management of the company considering the requirements of'ind As and
selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional
standards are maintained.

49) Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Company’s principal financial liabilities cther than derivatives comprise long-term and short-term
borrowings, capital creditors and trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial
liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations. The Company's principal financial assets other than
derivatives include trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents and deposits that derive
directly from its operation.
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The Company is exposed to market, credit, liquidity and regulatory risks. The Company does not have
any foreign Currency Liabilities; therefore, the exchange fluctuation risk is negligible. The Company’s
senior management oversees the management of these risks. The Board of Directors reviews and
agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarized below:

. Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
hecause of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: commodity risk, interest
rate risk and foreign currency risk.

{i}y Commodity Price Risk
The principal commaodity of the company, which is copper, is fully hedged, insulating it from any
price risk.

{ii} Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in
foreign exchange rate relates primarily to the Company's operating activities (when revenue or
expense:is denominated in a foreign currency). Further, the Company has foreign currency risk on
import of input materials, capital commitment and also borrow funds in foreign currency for its
business. The Company evaluates the impact of foreign exchange rate fluctuations by assessing its
exposure to exchange rate risks. Certain transactions of the Company act as a natural hedge asa
portion of both assets and liabilities are denominated in similar foreign currencies, for the
remaining exposers to foreign exchange risks, the Company adopts a policy of selective hedging
based on risk perception of management using derivative, whenever required, to mitigate or
eliminate the risks.

(iii) Interest Rate risk
The Company is exposed to interest rate risk on financial liabilities such as borrowings, both short-

__term-and-long-term. It-maintains a balance of fixed-and floating interest rate borrowings and the |-

proportion is determined by current market interest rates, projected debt servicing capability and
view on future interest rates.

B. Credit Risk

Financial Asset of the Company include trade receivables, employee advances and bank deposits
which represents Company's maximum exposure to the credit risk.

With respect to credit exposure from customers, the Company has a procedure in place aiming to
minimise collection losses. Credit Control team assesses the credit quality of the customers, their
financial position, past experience in payment and other relevant factors. The Company's exposure to
credit risk s influence mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. However,
management also considers the factors that may influence the credit risk of its customer base,
including default risk associated with the industry and country in which customers operate. Credit
quality of a customer is assessed based on an extensive credit rating scorecard and individual credit
limits are defined in accordance with this assessment, with respect to other financial risk Viz loan and
advances , deposit with government, the credjﬂt_},}cj& is insignificant since the loans and advances are
given to its employees only and deposits aféiHeld Mith reputable banks. The credit quality of the
financial assets is satisfactory, taking into/ ) }}:wance for credit losses.
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. Regulatory Risks

The Company performance may be impacted due to change in Regulatory Environment. The Company
is closely monitoring the regulatory developments and risks thereof and proactively implementing
course correction for proper compliance commensurate with new regulatory requirements.

. Liguidity Risk
The company's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through
the use of bank deposits and loans

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the company's financial fiabilities based on
contractual undiscounted payments '

Amount in Lacs (INR}

Year Ended On Demand 3t012 1%t05 Years »5 Years Total

. _ ___ Months

BleMar23 L oo ogasaa0 . A156,020 11610442
Borrowings -

31-Mar-22 T 5230.83  3650.61 388144

Borrowmgs o " —
50) Capital Management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, and all
other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Company. The primary objective of the
Company’s capital management is to maximize the shareholder value.

The Company manages its cagital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic

- conditions and the ‘reguirements of the fimancial covenants: To~maintain or adjust the capital™ |

structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, The Company monitors
capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Company
includes within net debt, interest beating loans and borrowings (Excluding Loans from Holding Co.),
trade and other payables, less cash and cash equivalents

Amount Lacs {INR}

Particulars 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
Borrowings -Non-Current (Excluding Loan from Holding co) 2843.16 2609.08
Borrowings - Current’ 7454.40 5230.83
Other Payables 1089.68 963.97
Less: Cash and Cash Equivalents 34.41 1056.37
Net Debt (A) ‘ : ' 11352.82 7747.51
Equity Share capital - 2000.00 2000.00
Other Equity 1288.50 885.42
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Quasi Equity (Loan from Holding Company) 1312.86 1041.53
Total Capital (B) 4601.36 3926.95
Capital and Net debt (A+B) 15954.18 11674.46
Gearing ratio (in %) 71.16 66.36

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things
including working capital management, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to
the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in
meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings.
There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowings

in the current peried.

51} Ratic analysis and its elements.

Ratic Mumerator Denominator March  March % Reason
31,2023 31,2022 Change for
variance
Current Ratio Current Assets Current Liabilities 1.36 1.43 {4.45) -
Debt-Equity Long Term Debt Shareholder's 0.24 0.33 (26.98) Note(a)
Ratio Equity+Quasi ‘
Equity.
Debt Service Earning for debt service Debt service = 1.28 1,40 {8.73) -
Coverage = Net profit before Interest & lease
Ratio taxes + non-cash © payments +
~ operafing expenses + Principal
Finance Costs repayments
Return on Net profit after taxes shareholder's 8.76 17.09  (48.75) Note(b)
Equity equity+Quasi
ratio(%} Equity.
Inventory Inventory Net Sales 40 14 176.08 Notelc)
Turnover
Cycle{No.of
days)
Trade Trade Receivables Gross Sales 11 15 {(25.33) Note(d)
receivables '
turnover
Cycle(No.of
days )
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Trade Trade Payables Net Purchases 7 4 93.06 Note(e)
payables
turnover
Cycle(No.of
days }

Net Capital  Net sales = Total sales-  Working Capital

16.57 2069 (19.92) . -

. DETAILS OF BENAMI PROPERTY HELD

Turnover sales return Current assets -
Ratio Current liabilities
Net Profit Net profit after taxes Net Sales = Total . 0.79 1.23  {36.10) Note(f)
Ratio{%) sales - Sales
return
Return on Earnings before Capital employed  21.73 24.08  (9.74) -
capital interest, Depreciation =Tangible Net
employed{%) and taxes Worth + Long
' "Term Debt
MNotes:

Change in the ratio is due to increase in Net worth on accumulation of Current Year Profits.

Change in the ratio is due to decrease in net profit because of revenue decline and higher Tax
cutflow. '

Inventory Holding period is high due to high percentage of import purchases wherein transit period
cover of 30 to 35 days has to be maintained.

Change in ratio is due to company’s policy of not extending Credit to all the Customers.

~-Change in-ratio-is.due to.company’s policy.of holding a certain.percentage of payment to suppliers

until the supplier files his GSTR - 1 and GSTR 3B.
Change in the ratio is due to decrease in net profit because of revenue decline and higher Tax -

outflow,
52) Other Statutory Information

A. RELATIONSHIP WITH STRUCK OFF COMPANIES

The company do not have any transactions with company's struck off under Section 248 of the Companies Act,
2013 or Section 560 of the Companies Act, 1956 during the year ended 31st March, 2023 {Previous year: Nil).

. DISCLOSURE IN RELATION TO UNDiSCLOSED INCOME

The company do not have'any such transactions which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year ended,Slst March, 2023 and also for the year ended 31st

prows:ons of the Income Tax Act, 1561).
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The Company do not hold any property under Benami Transactions {Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and
rules made thereundet, hence there are no proceedings against the company for the year ended 31st March,
2023 and also for the year ended 31st March, 2022.

D. REGISTRATION OF CHARGES OR SATISFACTION WITH REGISTRAR OF COMPANIES {ROC)

The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction, which are yet to be registered with ROC beyond the
statutory period, during the year ended 31st March, 2023 and also during the year ended 31st March, 2022,

E. DETAILS OF CRYPTO CURRENCY CR VIRTUAL CURRENCY

The company have not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the year ended 31st
March, 2023 and also during the year ended 31st March, 2022,

F. UTILISATION OF BORROWED FUND AND SHARE PREMIUM

The company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity (ies), including
foreign entities (intermediaries) with the understanding that the intermediary shall: {a) directly or Indirectly
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatscever by or on behalf of the company
(ultimate beneficlaries) or (b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate
beneficiaries.

The company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity{ies), including foreign entities {funding
party} with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the company shall: (a) directly
or indirectly lend or invest in‘other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the funding party (ultimate beneficiaries) or (b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
ultimate beneficiaries. -

G. The Company has not béen declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any
government authority.

53) Confirmation letters of majority of balances under the heads Trade Payables, Claims Recoverable, Loans &
Advances, Trade Recelvables and Deposits from and with various parties/ Government Departments have been
‘sent but in number of cases such confirmation letters from the parties are yet to be received.

54) Previous year’s figures have been regrouped and rearranged, wherever found necessary.
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